
 Continued Over/: 

Issued on 27 July 2011 
 

The reports included in Part I of this agenda can be made 

available in alternative formats. For further information about 
this service, or to arrange for special facilities to be provided at 

the meeting, please contact Orla Sweeney on 01622 
602524.To find out more about the work of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees, please visit www.maidstone.gov.uk/osc or 

www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk 

 
Alison Broom, Chief Executive, Maidstone Borough Council,  

Maidstone House, King Street, Maidstone, Kent ME15 6JQ 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

MAIDSTONE AND TUNBRIDGE 
WELLS JOINT HEALTH 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY SUB 

COMMITTEE MEETING 

 

Date: Thursday 4 August 2011 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Venue: Town Hall, High Street,       

            Maidstone 

 
Membership: 

 

Councillors: Basu, D Elliot, Mrs Crowhurst, D 

Mortimer, Mrs Paterson and Yates 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 Page No. 

1. The Committee to consider whether all items on the agenda 
should be web-cast  

 

2. Apologies   

3. Notification of Substitute Members   

4. Notification of Visiting Members   



 
 

5. Appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman   

 a) Election of Chairman 

b) Election of Vice-Chairman  
 

 

6. Disclosures by Members and Officers:   

 a) Disclosures of interest. 
b) Disclosure of lobbying. 

c) Disclosures of whipping.  
 

 

7. To consider whether any items should be taken in private 

because of the possible disclosure of exempt information.  

 

8. Minutes of the meeting held on 16 March 2011  1 - 12 

9. Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust: Quality Report 

2010/11  

13 - 75 

 Interview with: 
 

• Ashley Scarff, Associate Director of Strategy and   
Planning; 

• Claire Roberts, Head of Quality; and   
• Darren Yates, Head of Communications 

  

 

 

10. Adult Mental Health Review  76 - 81 

11. Joint Health Protocols and the Appointment of Substitute 

Members  

82 - 85 

12. Future Work Programme  86 - 87 

 



 1  

MAIDSTONE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

TUNBRIDGE WELLS BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES OF THE MAIDSTONE AND TUNBRIDGE WELLS 
JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY SUB COMMITTEE 

MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY 16 MARCH 2011 AT THE 
TOWN HALL, TUNBRIDGE WELLS 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Elliott (Chairman)    

Councillors Basu, Mrs Crowhurst, Mortimer and Mrs 
Paterson 

 
Mike McGeary (Overview & Scrutiny Officer, 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council) 

Orla Sweeney (Overview and Scrutiny Officer, 
Maidstone Borough Council) 

 
Witnesses:  

Jim Boot, Community Development Manager, 
Maidstone Borough Council 
Meradin Peachey, Kent Director of Public Health 

Helen Wolstenholme, Communities and Health 
Manager, Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

 
  

1. Apologies  

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Marchant and Mrs Stockell. 

 
2. Notification of Visiting Members  

 

There were none. 
 

3. Disclosure by Members and Officers  
 

a) Disclosures of interest 

 
Councillor Mortimer declared a personal interest in minute 6 below, 

on the basis that he worked in the rehabilitation sector. 
 
Councillor Basu declared a personal interest in the same minute as 

a retired consultant pathologist and former employee of the NHS.  
 

b) Disclosures of lobbying 
 

There were none. 

 
c) Disclosures of whipping 

 
There were none. 

Agenda Item 8

1



 2  

4. To consider whether any item should be taken in private because 
of the possible disclosure of exempt information  

 
Resolved: That all items be taken in public.  

 
5. Minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2010 

 

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting of the Maidstone and 
Tunbridge Wells Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee held on 21 September 2010 be agreed as a true 
record and duly signed by the Chairman. 

 

6. Public Health White Paper and Consultation Documents 
 

The Chairman explained that the Committee had been convened in order 
to consider the key issues set out in two consultation papers issued by the 
Department of Health under the overarching theme of their white paper 

‘Healthy Lives, Healthy People’. The principal focus of the meeting was to 
understand the extent of the impact of the proposals on local authorities 

and their residents and respond to the consultation papers accordingly.  
 

The following witnesses were introduced and welcomed to the Joint 
Committee: 
 

• Meradin Peachey, Kent Director of Public Health; 
• Helen Wolstenholme, Communities and Health Manager, Tunbridge 

Wells Borough Council; and  
• Jim Boot, Community Development Manager, Maidstone Borough 

Council 

 
First, Helen Wolstenholme summarised her report, which provided greater 

detail on the health service reforms originally announced by the 
Government in July 2010, following publication of the ‘Healthy Lives, 
Healthy People’ white paper in December 2010. The Committee was 

advised that, with the proposed abolition of Primary Care Trusts (PCTs), 
the public health function would be shared between local authorities (at a 

county council level) and a new body, Public Health England (PHE), the 
latter taking on responsibility for national level interventions. 
 

The officer added that this latest white paper explained how an ‘Outcomes 
Framework’ would be central to the delivery of the public health function 

of local authorities. Within the Framework, members noted, there would 
be five ‘domains’ (health protection and resilience; tackling the wider 
determinants of health; health improvement; prevention of ill health; and 

healthy life expectancy and preventable mortality). Each domain would 
contain a number of indicators, by which progress could be measured. 

 
The Joint Sub Committee was also advised that a ring-fenced budget 
would be allocated to Kent County Council (KCC) for the delivery of 

services. In addition, a ‘health premium’ was proposed, which would be 
paid to local authorities retrospectively for progress against the indicators, 

which would be weighted to the level of inequalities and progress made. 

2



 3  

 
All of the above was set out in an associated consultation paper entitled: 

“Transparency in Outcomes: proposals for a public health outcomes 
framework”. A second consultation paper, “The funding and 

commissioning routes for public health”, had also been published. The 
report circulated as part of the agenda summarised the key features of 
the proposals set out in the second consultation paper, as follows: (i) the 

Department of Health will set the NHS budget and the ‘public health’ 
budget which will go to Public Health England (PHE) who, in turn, will 

allocate a ring-fenced budget to local authorities (at county council level 
for Kent); (ii) PHE will manage commissioning for specific public health 
services via the NHS commissioning structure; (iii) the work that local 

authorities have and will continue to provide (e.g. health protection, 
leisure, housing, education and social care) will be separate from the 

‘public health’ budget; (iv) a new ‘health premium’ will be available to 
local authorities (at county council level in Kent), based on progress made 
and inequalities faced; and (v) the establishment of health and wellbeing 

boards, that would offer a mechanism for bringing together discussion 
about investment in cross-cutting services such as social care; 

representation on the boards would include local authority councillors, the 
new ‘HealthWatch’ (currently, the Kent LINk role, looking after patient 

interests), and commissioners for health and social care, including GP 
consortia and directors of public health, adult social care and children’s 
services.  

 
Members of the Joint Committee raised a number of key issues with the 

expert witnesses, as follows: 
 
(a) Funding for district council public health services: Helen Wolstenholme 

advised that while West Kent was in a more favourable position than other 
parts of the County for instance, it should be remembered that not all 

health issues faced in the region related solely to deprivation and poverty. 
Meradin Peachey added that there would be a significant reliance on Kent 
district councils to help address the inequality issues the county faced. 

She advised that the £17m budget which KCC would have for this work 
would be the subject of detailed discussions with the districts. Jim Boot 

stressed the importance of existing district council knowledge and 
experience in achieving successful outcomes in addressing inequalities and 
poverty, sometimes within very small geographical areas where the 

greatest need had been identified. 
 

(b) Continuity of funding: Members stressed the importance of being able 
to provide an assurance to voluntary or independent organisations over 
continued funding beyond a 1-year limit. Meradin Peachey advised that 

KCC’s approach would be to agree 2- or 3-year contracts, to provide the 
reassurance needed and assist with proper planning of services. 

 
 
(c) Behavioural change and the environment: Meradin Peachey drew 

attention to the importance of bringing about successful behavioural 
change in encouraging healthier lifestyles. She advised that there were 

some fundamental environmental issues involved – in building design for 

3



 4  

example – which could build on best practices elsewhere. Meradin 
stressed the importance of greater use of ‘health impact assessments’ at 

the planning stage of new development.   
 

Members next considered the questions in the consultation papers listed 
above and, with the guidance of the expert witnesses, were able to 
identify what they considered to be the key issues – either supporting the 

detailed proposals or where significant concerns existed. 
 

(NB – Meradin Peachey, Kent Director of Public Health, was present for 
the consideration of the consultation paper questions relating to Appendix 
A but not for those in Appendix B.) 

 
Appended to these minutes is the Committee’s recommended response to 

the issues raised in those consultation papers. The Chairman advised that 
these proposed responses would next be submitted to the portfolio-holder 
for health within each authority, for approval under their delegated 

powers, before submission to the Department of Health by the due 
deadline, i.e. 31 March 2011. 

  
Resolved: That the responses attached as Appendices A and B, be 

submitted to the Department of Health. 
 

7. Duration of the Meeting  

 
2.30 p.m. to 5.05 p.m. 

4



 5  

APPENDIX A 
 

MAIDSTONE BOROUGH COUNCIL AND 
TUNBRIDGE WELLS BOROUGH COUNCIL – JOINT RESPONSE 

 
The following is the response of Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells 
Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s response to the 

questions raised in the Department of Health’s consultation paper 
entitled “Transparency in outcomes – proposals for a public health 

outcomes framework”. 
 
In formulating this response, the Joint Scrutiny Committee heard 

evidence from a range of witnesses, including local authority 
professional staff.  

 
 
General Comments: 

 
The Joint Committee was mostly supportive of the key proposals set out in 

the Outcomes Framework. Issues of concern at district council level are 
largely related to understanding the level of activity that will be devolved 

by the County Council. There is a strongly-held belief – backed up by 
evidence – that it is at district council level where most of the knowledge, 
experience and awareness of greatest need lies.  

 
Two key points: (a) it would be unacceptable to waste the beneficial 

outcomes that district councils have achieved to date, should they fail to 
be given the opportunity to continue their targeted health improvement 
work; (b) West Kent might be seen as having a relatively healthy 

population, but significant inequalities still exist across this part of the 
County (e.g. a 7-year age gap in life expectancy) and require a 

continuation of this targeted – and demonstrably effective – work. 
 
Alongside the key issue of district council involvement is one of the 

associated funding, to be able to commission and deliver the health 
improvement work. Finally, there is real concern about the transitional 

arrangements; this is hardly a new concept but it is vital it is planned 
thoroughly, in order to protect (above all) the most vulnerable people.  
 

There will therefore need to be regular and detailed discussions held 
between Kent County Council and the district councils. 

 
 
 

 
Question 1. How can we ensure that the Outcomes Framework enables 

local partnerships to work together on health and wellbeing priorities, and 
does not act as a barrier? 
 

Key points: 
 

5



 6  

(a) You cannot over-stress the importance of continuing 2-way 
communication; 

(b) Many of the outcomes fall within the remit of district councils (e.g. 
housing, leisure etc) and many are cross-cutting, involving both 

counties and districts which, taken across the board, results in a 
good understanding of the outcomes and a healthy willingness to 
work together towards improvements; and 

(c) Vitally, the need for a ‘bottom up’ approach from parishes and 
communities.  

 
Question 2. Do you feel these are the right criteria to use in determining 
indicators for public health? 

 
Generally, yes, with support for the principles behind the Marmot Report 

of a whole-life approach, but with a greater focus on early years’ 
provision. 
 

In addition, it was suggested that more qualitative measures would be 
helpful and that there should be flexibility so as not to be bound by 

national indicators alone. This would allow local areas to address their 
local issues, reflecting the localism agenda. In counties such as Kent, 

districts can have very different priorities and so the indicators should be 
flexible enough to reflect this. 
 

Question 3. How can we ensure that the Outcomes Framework and the 
health 

premium are designed to ensure they contribute fully to health inequality 
reduction and advancing equality? 
 

There needs to be clarity as to which level the health premium and 
outcomes framework can be applied, for example will it be at upper tier 

level or can districts and parishes also seek health premium funding? 
 
In addition, concern was voiced about the retrospective nature of the 

health premium, which might deter innovation and activity in a time when 
other resources are scarce.   

 
 
 

Question 4. Is this the right approach to alignment across the NHS, Adult 
Social Care and Public Health frameworks? 

 
Generally, yes. 
 

Question 5. Do you agree with the overall framework and domains? 
 

Again, generally yes. 
 
Question 6. Have we missed out any indicators that you think we should 

include? 
 

6



 7  

Possibly ‘inequalities over access to health services’, but generally not in 
favour of adding too many more indicators. 

 
It was also felt that some indicators might be difficult to collate at a local 

level so it was important to choose those where one could differentiate 
amongst some very small geographical areas.  
 

Question 7. We have stated in this document that we need to arrive at a 
smaller set of indicators than we have had previously. Which would you 

rank as the most important? 
 
‘Early years’  are seen to be crucial and those indicators which relate to 

the first years, including the ante-natal period, of a child’s life should be 
retained, including wider determinants such as housing.  

 
Apart from that, the strongly-held view is that the choice of ranking 
indicators should be very much a local decision.   

 
Question 8. Are there indicators here that you think we should not 

include? 
 

General comment: it is better to use indicators that are strongly 
embedded, that have a proven track record in terms of showing trends. 
 

The Joint Committee discussed that while some indicators could be seen 
to be unnecessary for the measurement of health such as ‘life years lost 

from air pollution’ indicator (under Domain 1), these should be kept due 
to the serious and long term health risks.  
 

 
 

Question 9. How can we improve indicators we have proposed here? 
 
In two ways: 

 
(a) By ensuring the measures use established indicators therefore 

allowing comparison and the ability to assess change and 
improvement; and  

(b) By ensuring they are accessible in a centrally-held place and 

available at the lowest spatial level possible.  
 

Question 10. Which indicators do you think we should incentivise? 
(consultation on this will be through the accompanying consultation on 
public health finance and systems) 

 
Again, two key points: 

 
(a) By concentrating on those behaviours which are the most 

disadvantageous to health (e.g. smoking, excess drinking, obesity 

etc); and 

7



 8  

(b) Incentives should only be provided for outcomes, not processes, for 
example incentives for successful weight loss rather than for simple 

weighing or counting.   
 

Question 11. What do you think of the proposal to share a specific 
domain on preventable mortality between the NHS and Public Health 
Outcomes Frameworks? 

 
Key points here were: 

 
(a) Hospitals also have a vital role to play in prevention/health 

improvement and this should also be linked with successful 

outcomes; and 
(b) From local experience, there exists a need to better engage GPs in 

the referral of patients for initiatives such as ‘good neighbour 
programmes’, to ensure positive outcomes and a lower risk or re-
admittance. 

 
Question 12. How well do the indicators promote a life-course approach 

to public health? 
 

(a) There might be scope for further development of ‘key transition 
events’ which people experience, e.g. starting school or beginning 
work or becoming a parent for the first time, where there might be 

greater willingness towards healthier behavioural changes; 
(b) Is there scope for better-informed dietary habits to be formed 

through the school curriculum? (The old ‘domestic science’ approach, 
the principle of which had significant advantages, but within a 
modern context.); and 

(c) Another key life-course period is at pre-natal stage, so that reducing 
teenage pregnancy rates and avoiding smoking during pregnancy are 

both major issues. 
 
 

8



 9  

APPENDIX B 
 

MAIDSTONE BOROUGH COUNCIL AND 
TUNBRIDGE WELLS BOROUGH COUNCIL – JOINT RESPONSE 

 
The following is the response of Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells 
Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s response to the 

questions raised in the Department of Health’s consultation paper 
entitled “The funding and commissioning routes for public health”. 

 
In formulating this response, the Joint Scrutiny Committee heard 
evidence from a range of witnesses, including local authority 

professional staff.  
 

General Comments: 
 
The Joint Committee was generally supportive of the key proposals on 

funding and commissioning routes, with some important observations: (a) 
the need to allow for local flexibility to the maximum; and (b) the 

importance of ‘up-front’ payments as much as possible, in order to 
provide for proper planning and reassurance for voluntary/independent 

service providers.  
 
Question 1. Is the health and wellbeing board the right place to bring 

together ring-fenced public health and other budgets? 
 

The view of the Joint Committee was that while this might be acceptable 
at a County Council level, there should be the flexibility to devolve 
responsibility to a district council level – or even to a smaller (parish or 

community) more local level. This would provide a better focus for 
examining local issues and would better fit with the Coalition’s emphasis 

on localism. 
 
Question 2. What mechanisms would best enable local authorities to 

utilise voluntary and independent sector capacity to support health 
improvement plans? What can be done to ensure the widest possible 

range of providers are supported to play a full part in providing health and 
wellbeing services and minimise barriers to such involvement? 
 

The Joint Committee felt there were three important factors: 
 

(a) The availability of any ‘willing provider’ and the use of local 
knowledge to encourage that; 

(b) The assurance that needs to be given to voluntary/independent 

organisations of continued funding, beyond a 1-year limit; and 
(c) The option to commission services at a local (i.e. district) level. 

 
Question 3. How can we best ensure that NHS commissioning is 
underpinned by the necessary public health advice? 

 
Two key points: 

 

9



 10  

(a) The need to ensure that a joint strategic needs assessment is built 
into the working arrangements; and 

(b) Where possible, commission to accredited service providers or else to 
service providers who can demonstrate they are fulfilling NICE 

guidelines. The NHS might look to establish accreditation for service 
providers where a gap exists, e.g. with obesity  

 

Question 4. Is there a case for Public Health England to have greater 
flexibility in future on commissioning services currently provided through 

the GP contract, and if so how might this be achieved? 
 
The Joint Committee – and the witnesses reporting to it – were unclear 

about the intention and purpose of this question and needed greater 
clarity over what was being asked. 

 
Question 5. Are there any additional positive or negative impacts of our 
proposals that are not described in the equality impact assessment and 

that we should take account of when developing the policy? 
 

There is a need to consider the impact of the proposals on other, related 
services. In other words, the proposals cannot be considered in isolation 

but account must be taken of the accumulative effect on services such as 
adult social care, housing, elderly people services etc. 
 

Question 6. Do you agree that the public health budget should be 
responsible for funding the remaining functions and services in the areas 

listed in the second column of Table A? 
 
There was a strong feeling that there should be flexibility applied, to allow 

local priorities to be agreed from the list. One size does not fit all and local 
knowledge and circumstances must be the determining factors.  

 
Question 7. Do you consider the proposed primary routes for 
commissioning of public health funded activity (the third column) to be 

the best way to: 
a) ensure the best possible outcomes for the population as a whole, 

including the most vulnerable; and 
b) reduce avoidable inequalities in health between population groups and 
communities? 

If not, what would work better? 
 

Generally, yes, and there was support for the principle of other services 
(health visiting was one area) which might more naturally and effectively 
be undertaken by local authorities, to link with their new responsibilities. 

 
Question 8. Which services should be mandatory for local authorities to 

provide or commission? 
 
The Joint Committee agreed with the view expressed by Kent County 

Council, i.e. this should be determined locally, according to what is most 
suitable at a county level.  

 

10



 11  

Question 9. Which essential conditions should be placed on the grant to 
ensure the successful transition of responsibility for public health to local 

authorities? 
 

Three key points, which generally align with Kent County Council’s 
position: 
 

(a) The grant monies need to be paid in full at the start of the year, to 
ensure security of funding and a proper level of forward planning; 

(b) The level of grant should be based on 2009/10 actual expenditure, as 
this reflected realistic service provision, before cuts were applied; 
and 

(c) Shadow budgets should be issued as soon as possible, to allow for a 
realistic level of forward planning to take place.  

 
Question 10. Which approaches to developing an allocation formula 
should we ask ACRA to consider? 

 
The Joint Committee voiced support for the preference (and reasoning) 

expressed by Kent County Council for the ‘population health measures’ 
option. This was largely on the basis that the remaining options worked 

against local (i.e. Kent County) conditions.  
 
Question 11. Which approach should we take to pace-of-change? 

 
This was difficult to express a view on until key issues such as transitional 

funding and the full impact of changes were better understood.  
 
 

Question 12. Who should be represented in the group developing the 
formula? 

 
The Joint Committee was not able to assist with this and assumed that 
national experts on the health premium issue were advising. 

 
Question 13. Which factors do we need to consider when considering 

how to apply elements of the Public Health Outcomes Framework to the 
health premium? 
 

Two key points: 
 

(a) The need to know whether the health premium can be paid to levels 
below County Council; and  

(b) The need for clarity over the timing of payments, i.e. a preference 

would be for half the premium to be paid in advance and the 
remainder retrospectively. This would have a significant impact on 

planning service provision and any other process would detract from 
voluntary/independent commitment. 

 

Question 14. How should we design the health premium to ensure that it 
incentivises reductions in inequalities? 

 

11



 12  

Key points: 
 

(a) Some of the funding needs to be ‘up-front’, to provide the necessary 
incentives; and 

(b) Clarity is needed in measuring achievements. For instance, take life 
expectancy: this requires much longer timescales to make a 
judgement and what geographical area will be used for a comparison 

to be drawn? 
 

Question 15. Would linking access to growth in health improvement 
budgets to progress on elements of the Public Health Outcomes 
Framework provide an effective incentive mechanism? 

 
There was a strong feeling that no, this would not be the right approach. 

For instance, some areas face a significant challenge in bringing about 
health improvements, with external factors (e.g. large-scale 
unemployment through the loss of a major employer or if in a largely 

middle-class area where there is a higher level of positive response to 
health messages) skewing the outcomes. Such circumstances could lead 

to unfair treatment and penalty. 
 

 
 
Question 16. What are the key issues the group developing the formula 

will need to consider? 
 

Income 
Social profile 
What spatial levels will be used? (County? District? Parish/Community?) 

Up-front funding 
The importance of not overlooking the general benefit of public health 

improvement by over-concentrating on areas of deprivation and poverty. 

 

 
 
 

 

12



 
 

Maidstone Borough Council 
 

Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells Joint Health Overview and 

Scrutiny Sub Committee 
 

Thursday 4 August 2011 
 

Maidstone & Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust Draft Quality Accounts 

 
Report of: Overview & Scrutiny Officer 

 
 1. Introduction 
 

1.1 To consider the Quality Accounts 2010/11 and prepare a response 
to be submitted to the NHS which will be included with the 

consultation responses on their website. 
 

 2. Recommendation 
 
2.1 The Committee is recommended to interview Ashley Scarff, 

 Assistant Director of Strategy and Planning, Clare Roberts, Head of 
 Quality and Darren Yates, Head of Communications, representing 

 Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS trust. 
 
2.2 Areas of questioning could include but are not limited: 

 
 The quality improvements and priorities detailed in the 2009/10 

 report which included: 
 

• Rates of avoidable Hospital acquired infections 

• Patient slips, trips and falls; 
• Caring for stroke patients; 

• Improving the patient’s experience of their stay in Hospital; 
and 

• Improving communication and access to information. 

 
And the priorities identified in the 2010/10 report which were based 

on the progress made against the priorities identified the previous 
year: 
 

• Patient Safety  
 ○  Continuing our focus on reducing the number of  

  avoidable healthcare associated infections  
 ○  Prevention of blood clots or venous thromboembolism 

  (VTE) – there is a new national target relating to  
  patients who are at risk of VTE receiving treatment to 

  thin the blood (Anticoagulants)  
 ○  Ensuring all patients receive their appropriate  

  nutritional requirements  
 

• Clinical Effectiveness  

Agenda Item 9

13



 
 ○  Ensure greater efficiency of working at ward level  

  through the implementation of the productive ward 
  programme – “releasing time to care”  

 ○ Continuing our focus on improving care for patients 
  who have had a stroke  

 ○  Improving the care we provide for patients who are 
  suffering from dementia  

 
• Patient Experience  

 ○  Continuing our focus on communication and   

  information for patients  
 ○  Improving our management of discharge planning  

 ○  Reducing the number of breaches we have in relation 

  to delivering same sex accommodation for patients  
 

 

3. Reasons for Recommendation 
 

3.1 The Committee scrutinised the draft Quality Accounts for 2009-
2010 as part of the Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust’s 
consultation process.  Members are providing a statutory function 

by commenting on matters that affect the health and well-being of 
the residents of Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells Boroughs. 

 
3.2 Interviewing representatives from the NHS Trust will enable the 

Committee to fulfill its statutory function and gain an ongoing 

understanding of the problems faced by the Trust and the reasons 
for choosing the actions identified to improve performance for the 

coming year. 
 

 

 
 

 
  
 

 

 

14



Page 1 of 61 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Quality Accounts 
2010/11 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

15



Page 2 of 61 

 

Quality Accounts 
 
Introduction 
 
The provision of safe quality services and experience for patients, staff and the public is 
central to the work of Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust. 
 
The Health Act 2009 requires all NHS healthcare providers in England to provide an 
annual report on our Quality Accounts. This is our second Quality Report. Within it we aim 
to highlight the progress we have made against the key priorities as agreed in last year’s 
Quality Accounts, areas of improvement in service delivery for our patients and highlight 
those areas that we will be focusing on as priorities for 2011/2012. 
 
As patients you have a right to expect us to provide high quality services. In recent years 
there has been a determined drive within the NHS to increase the focus on the quality of 
care provided. Through the application of clinical governance we have systems in place to 
monitor standards and address areas of concern. The aspects of quality delivery fall into 
the categories of Patient Safety, Clinical Effectiveness and Patient Experience. 

 
There are a number of national targets set each year by the Department of Health and 
locally, against which we monitor the quality of the services we provide. Through these 
Quality Accounts we aim to provide you with information on how effective our services 
are, how they are measured and where we aim to make improvements. 

 
 

 

Index 
 
Part one -  
Chief Executive’s Statement 
 
 

Part two –  
Prioritising our improvements for 2011/12 

○ Patient Safety 
○ Clinical Effectiveness 
○ Patient Experience 

 
 

Part three-  
Quality Overview 

 
 

Part four -  
Stakeholder feedback 
 

16



Page 3 of 61 

 

 
 
 

                            Chief Executive’s Statement 
 
                                   Welcome to Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust’s  
                                               Quality Accounts. 
 
                                               MTW provides a wide range of complex and routine health   
                                               services to meet people’s different health needs. 
 
Our aim is to provide these high quality and innovative health services from hospitals with 
centres of expertise. Our healthcare professionals strive to be innovative, providing 
patients with a wide choice of options and treatments that are individual to their needs. 
 
We pride ourselves on our medical and surgical expertise, state of the art diagnostic 
facilities, our nursing care and the environment in which we care for our patients. 
 
This year MTW is opening the first NHS acute hospital with 100% single en-suite rooms 
for patients at the Tunbridge Wells Hospital in Pembury. 
 
The Trust is also opening five new centres of expertise in trauma care, planned surgery, 
orthopaedic surgery, women and children’s care and cellular pathology. 
 
All of these developments and other improvements are contributing to a better experience 
for our patients. 
 
We have established nine key priorities with our stakeholders, including patients and 
public representatives this year, which we believe will help improve the quality of our 
services further still. 
 
The key priorities are: 
 
○ Continuing to drive down cases of hospital acquired infections, paying particular 

attention to Clostridium difficile where it has been a side-effect of antibiotic use 
 
○ To help our Ward Leaders and teams review the way that key activities are 

undertaken on wards in order to release time to provide more direct patient care 
 

○ Ensuring we meet the needs of patients who have dementia 
 

○ Contributing to patients’ overall wellbeing by ensuring they receive good nutrition 
 

○ Reducing the risk of deep vein thrombosis (venous thromboembolism) 
 

○ To improve the quality of care and health outcomes for patients who have had a 
stroke 

 

○ Improvements in Discharge Planning 
 

                          

                                
                                            

                                           

Part 

one  

17



Page 4 of 61 

 

 

○ To improve the quality of communication and information given to patients and the 
public 

 
○ To deliver same sex accommodation for patients and avoid any breaches 
 

 
We will continue to monitor what our patients are telling us through our real-time surveys 
every month and make more of their priorities become our priorities throughout the year. 
 
The information contained within this report represents an accurate reflection of our  
organisation’s performance in 2010/11 and has been agreed by the MTW Trust Board. 
 
 

 
 
 
Glenn Douglas 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18



Page 5 of 61 

 

 
 
 
 
 

                                                              Quality improvement initiatives 
 
 

                                                     How has MTW prioritised its quality         
                                                     improvement initiatives for 2011/12? 

 
 
 

 
Priorities for Improvement 

 
To prioritise the areas for improvement this year we have again consulted with patients, 
the public and our staff to identify areas where improvement is needed and where we 
can have the most impact. 
 
During the last year we focused on the following priorities: 
 
○ Reducing the number of avoidable healthcare associated infections 
○ Reducing the incidence of patient falls 
○ Improving the care of our stroke patients 
○ Reducing the number of ward to ward moves for patients 
○ Improving communication and information given to patients 
 
In part 3 we reflect on the progress that has been made against these targets. 
 
To identify the priorities for this year we have looked at progress against those we 
identified last year, trends in the complaints we have received and national reports such 
as the Public Health Service Ombudsman’s report published this year, Care and 
Compassion. 
 
While we have made real progress against last year’s priorities we have kept  three – 
preventing hospital acquired infections, the care of patients who have had a stroke and 
communication, as key areas of focus for 2011/12 to ensure that we continue to 
improve and embed the learning that has taken place in the last year. 
 
As a result of this we have identified the following priorities for this year: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                              

                                                   
                                          

Part 

two  

19



Page 6 of 61 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

There is a robust governance structure for monitoring progress against 
these indicators to ensure the Trust Board is kept informed and to 
ensure decisions can be made and corrective action taken if necessary. 
 
The Trust’s Quality and Safety Committee will receive reports on progress against the key 
priorities and provide assurance on progress to the Trust Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Patient Safety 
 

○ Continuing our focus on reducing the number of avoidable 
healthcare associated infections 

○ Prevention of blood clots or venous thromboembolism (VTE) – 
there is a new national target relating to patients who are at risk of 
VTE receiving treatment to thin the blood (Anticoagulants) 

○ Ensuring all patients receive their appropriate nutritional 
requirements 

 
 

Clinical Effectiveness 
 

○ Ensure greater efficiency of working at ward level through the 
implementation of the productive ward programme – “releasing 
time to care” 

○ Continuing our focus on improving care for patients who have had 
a stroke 

○ Improving the care we provide for patients who are suffering from 
dementia 

 
 

Patient Experience 
 

○ Continuing our focus on communication and information for 
patients 

○ Improving our management of discharge planning 
○ Reducing the number of breaches we have in relation to delivering 

same sex accommodation for patients 
 

20



Page 7 of 61 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Patient Safety 
 

 

 

Infection Prevention and Control 
 

Venous Thromboembolism (VTE)  
 

Patient nutrition 
 

21



Page 8 of 61 

 

 

 
 
Aim/Goal 
 

To reduce our C. difficile rate by 18% and  
MRSA bacteraemia by 10% in the next year.  
In 2010/11 the limit set for MRSA bacteraemia  
cases was 6 – we had 5. In 2011/2012 maximum  
limit set is 5 

 
Description of issue and rationale for  
prioritising 
 

Our rates of C. difficile infection continue to fall  
year on year. Our MRSA bacteraemia rate has 
reduced by 67% in the last year and by 91% 
since 2003/4. As a Trust we have a zero  
tolerance approach to healthcare associated  
infection (HCAI). 
 
Identified areas for improvement and progress during 2010/11 
 

The reduction in MRSA bacteraemia and C difficile infections during the year was 
supported by the following actions: 
○ Line-associated and device-associated infections identified in root cause analysis 
○ During the 2010/11 we have had no line-associated or device-associated MRSA 

bacteraemia 
○ Training in line insertion and management 
○ An IV trainer was appointed who is delivering an extensive programme of training 
○ Implementation of MRSA action plan including peer review and continuous learning 

from root cause analysis 
○ Preventative treatment such as prophylaxis for insertion and removal of lines and 

devices in MRSA positive patients and the introduction of probiotic for patients on 
antibiotics 

○ Introduction of Difficil-S as a cleaning agent for mattresses 
 

Initiatives for further action in 2011/12 
 

○ Further improvement in antibiotic management 
○ Development of cohort nursing areas at Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells Hospitals 
○ New infection prevention strategies for nursing patients in single rooms  
○ Monitoring of the C. difficile action plan including learning from root cause analysis to 

achieve objective for the year 
○ Consolidate IV training programme and aseptic no touch technique (ANTT) for 

venipuncture 
 

Board Sponsor: Dr Sara Mumford, Director of Infection Prevention and Control 
Implementation Lead: Gail Locock, Deputy Director of Infection Prevention and Control 
Monitoring: via the Infection Prevention and Control Committee 
 
 
 
 

Infection Prevention and Control 

 

22



Page 9 of 61 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
Aim/Goal 
 
To comply with the national standards and 
 the Commissioning for Quality and  
Innovation (CQUIN) VTE measure, that all 
at risk patients should receive the  
appropriate anticoagulant therapy following  
risk assessment.  
  
Identified Areas for Improvement 
 
Our reported compliance with documenting  
the VTE Risk Assessment for March 20011 was 43%. Our aim is to achieve 90% 
compliance with completing risk assessments and administering anticoagulation therapy 
where appropriate by the end of August 2011.  
  
Initiatives in 2010/11 
 
During the last year we have implemented various actions to help ensure that we can 
meet this target, including: 
 

· Introducing a new policy to address the requirements 

· New risk assessment forms in place 

· Daily monitoring and weekly reporting of compliance re risk assessments 

· Introducing a learning package in relation to VTE prevention 

· Introducing an audit tool relating to VTE 

· Introducing patient information leaflets  
 
 
In addition to continuing with the initiatives from 2010 / 2011, which were beginning to 
benefit patients: 
 
New Initiatives for 2011/12 
 

· A 2nd VTE Nurse Facilitator seconded from 1st April 2011 

· Peer review by exemplar sites 

· VTE implementation group working to identify and address actions required to    
           improve compliance 
 
 
Board Sponsor: Paul Sigston, Medical Director 
Implementation Lead:  Elaine Cheney, Matron for Medicine 
Monitoring: via the Standards Committee 
 

 

Venous Thromboembolism (VTE)  
 

 

23



Page 10 of 61 

 

 
 
 

 

Aim/goal 
All patients to receive their nutritional 
requirements. This will be supported  
by their having a nutritional 
risk assessment undertaken and 
implemented in accordance with the 
Malnutrition Universal screening Tool 
commonly known as MUST. 
 
This is a five-step screening tool to  
identify adults who are malnourished,  
at risk of malnutrition, or obese. 
It also includes management guidelines which can be used to develop a care plan.  
  
 

○ 100% of patients to have a nutritional assessment completed within 24 hours of 
admission 

○ From the patient survey questionnaires we can monitor patient satisfaction in relation 
to: 

 

 2010 National 
Inpatient Survey 

March 2011 
Local Patient 
Survey 

Aim for 
National Score 
in 2011 

The % of patients getting enough 
assistance to eat 

63% 90% 73% 

The % of patients who rate hospital 
food as good 

48% 90% 58% 

 
For our national survey scores we are aiming for a 10% improvement in 2011/12. 
 
Initiatives in 2010/11 
 
○ All patients are identified and given assistance as required by using the Red Tray 

system 
○ Introduction of protected meal times 
○ The Food is medicine Group was established in 2010 in response to an identified 

need to have a dedicated operational delivery group to support the work and 
recommendations of the Nutritional Steering Group and national policy 

 
All patients are now assessed on admission and where assistance is required this is  
noted on both the ‘Patient Information Board’ and patient’s menu card. 
Individual meals come from the kitchens on a Red Tray so that patients requiring help can 
be easily identified. Wards have a local supply of feeding/eating aids such as cutlery with 
large handles, adapted drinking cups and non-slip place mats. 
 
Regular audit activity indicates significant changes to practice; this has been supported by 
patient representatives who have visited the wards on a number of occasions. However, 

Patient nutrition 

 

24



Page 11 of 61 

 

there are still improvements to be made in both the timeliness and consistency of 
assessment of both nutritional status and assistance requirements. Further work is 
required to strengthen the support of non-nursing and non-clinical activity on the wards at 
or around meal times. 
Ward Sisters have demonstrated their commitment to Protected Meal Times in a number 
of ways including early detection of a change in the catering process that impacted on the 
planned meal delivery times to individual wards. 
 
 
New initiatives for 2011/12 
  

○ Meal standard to be introduced across the Trust to strengthen protected meal times, 
ensure appropriate nutritional assessments are carried out and assistance provided 
where required. Mealtimes should be supervised by a registered nurse. The standard 
is being developed in collaboration by the Dieticians and Catering Team via the Food 
is Medicine Group 

○ Nursing Nutritional Audit to be carried out 
 

 

Board Sponsor: Flo-Panel Coates, Chief Nurse 

Implementation Lead: Christine Steele, Matron, Patient Experience 

Monitoring: via the Nutritional Steering Group 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25



Page 12 of 61 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Clinical 
Effectiveness 

 

 

 

 

Greater efficiency – more time to care 
 

Stroke Care 
 
Dementia Care 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

26



Page 13 of 61 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  More time to care 

2
7



Page 14 of 61 

 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ensure greater efficiency of working at  
ward level through the introducing the 
productive ward programme –  
“releasing time to care” 
 
Aim/goal 
Releasing Time to Care - Productive Ward 
programme is a national initiative designed 
by the NHS Institute for Innovation and  
Improvement. The aim of the initiative is to 
help Ward Leaders and teams review the way that key activities are undertaken on 
wards in order to release time to provide more direct patient care.  
 
Initiatives in 2010/11 
 
○ 21 wards across the trust commenced the programme. 
○ Direct care time has increased from:  32% - 46% on Mercer Ward and 46% to 57% on 

Ward 7  
 
 
New Initiatives for 2011/12 
 
○ All wards to complete the 3 foundation modules for releasing time to care by the end of 

March 2012 
○ 80% of wards to have completed at least 50% of the modules by the end of March 2012 
○ Current target is to increase the direct care time by at least 10% following completion 

of the foundation modules. 
 
 
 
Board Sponsor: Flo Panel-Coates, Chief Nurse 
Implementation Lead: Meral Hart, Productive Ward Lead Nurse 
Monitoring: via the Standards Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Greater efficiency – 

more time to care 

 

28



Page 15 of 61 

 

 
 

 
 
 
Improving care for patients who 
have had a stroke 
 
Aim/goal 
To improve the quality of care and health 
outcomes for patients who have had a  
stroke. This will be monitored by improved 
compliance with the nine core quality 
indicators in the national sentinel audit. 
 
This was a key priority for us last year and  
although considerable improvements have 
been made in the care we now provide for 
this group of patients it remains a key focus for us. 
 
 
Initiatives in 2010/11 
○ By the end of the year the trust had achieved 75% compliance with the 9 national 

targets as set within the Sentinel Audit. These actions have been identified as key to 
improving outcomes for patients who have had a stroke. 

○ Expected Date of Discharge (EDD) achieved for stroke patients set within 7 days of 
admission 

○ 20% improvement of stroke patients spending 90% of their time in a stroke bed – it is 
known that outcomes are improved when patients who have had a stroke are cared for 
in a dedicated unit. 

○ Maidstone combined stroke unit opened in 2010 
○ Recruited nurses so that the vacancy factor is now below 8% cross site. Having 

permanent staff helps to ensure continuity of care and support ward developments. 
 
New Initiatives for 2011/12 
○ A specialist stroke nurse is to be recruited 
○ 90% of patients to spend 80% of their care episode in a dedicated stroke ward 
○ To continue to achieve 75% compliance in the 9 key indicators 
○ Relocation of stroke specific rehabilitation beds at Tonbridge Cottage Hospital – with 

the move to the Tunbridge Wells Hospital in Pembury, where there will be a dedicated 
stroke unit for patients in the acute phase of their care. Patients will then be able to 
move to a dedicated rehabilitation unit in Tonbridge 

 
 
Board Sponsor: Nikki Luffingham, Chief Operating Officer 
Implementation Lead: Linda Summerfield, Associate Director of Nursing 
Monitoring: via the Standards Committee 
 
 
 

Improving stroke care 

 

29



Page 16 of 61 

 

 

 
 
 
 
Aim/goal 
To identify those patients with 
dementia with a view to ensuring that 
an effective care plan is in place to 
ensure they receive the best care 
possible.  
 
Care for patients who have dementia 
is a key national focus currently and 
has been a key issue at our Patient 
Experience Committee. 
 
Initiatives in 2010/11  
 

○ A new training programme was introduced – exceeded the plan for 10% of our staff to 
attend specialist training in dementia care in 2010 

○ The Trust is working with local dementia forums to support and deliver a cohesive multi-
disciplinary/multi-agency approach to care for this patient group 

○ A dementia strategy group, chaired by our Chief Nurse, was started and continues 
 
New Initiatives for 2011/12 
 
Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust took part in the national dementia audit and 
having established a baseline action plan, agreed the following priorities: 
 
○ Training strategy – 50% of identified staff to have received some awareness training  
○ Integrated care pathway for patients with dementia to be developed 
○ Patient documentation to be improved 
○ An intranet site to raise awareness regarding dementia care to be introduced 
○ The Trust has identified a lead practitioner to work with service commissioners 

regarding more effective liaison for mental health including dementia patients 
○ An admission avoidance project began in February 2011 and will run for 6 months with 

input from a commissioner who jointly works for social services and the Primary Care 
Trust (PCT) 

○ This year’s Enhancing Quality Measures for dementia is the auditing of the appropriate 
use of antipsychotic drugs. 

 

Board Sponsor – Flo Panel-Coates, Chief Nurse 
Implementation Lead – Jo Hockley, Matron for Older People 
Monitoring: via the Dementia Strategy Group 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Dementia Care 

30



Page 17 of 61 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Patient 
experience  

 

 

 

 

Discharge planning 
 

Improving patient communications 
 
Providing same sex accommodation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

31



Page 18 of 61 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Aim/goal 
Ensure all patients have their discharge 
from hospital planned to ensure there 
is a seamless transfer home with  
appropriate support in place and  
communication with all relevant parties. 
 
 
Initiatives in 2010/11 
 
○ Joint working with community services and social services to help focus 
 
New Initiatives for 2011/12 
 
○ Ensure electronic discharge notification is rolled out across the organisation 
○ Revise leaflets for patients and relatives in relation to discharge 
○ Continued improvements in multiagency working 
○ Estimated Dates for Discharge to be in place for all patients  
○ Improved compliance with targets set in the national  patient survey: 

 
 
 

 2010 National 
Inpatient Survey 

Aim for 
National Score 
in 2011 

% compliance with patients feeling 
involved in decisions about discharge 
from hospital 

56% 66% 

% patients given written information 
about what they should/should not do 
after leaving hospital 

65% 75% 

% receiving copies of letters sent to 
GPs 

76% 86% 

% Family given enough information re 
discharge 

38% 48% 

 
                 We are aiming for a 10% improvement in 2011/12. 
 

Board Sponsor: Nikki Luffingham, Chief Operating Officer 
Implementation Lead: Linda Summerfield, Associate Director of Nursing 
Monitoring: via Divisional Operations Group 
 
 
 
 

Discharge Planning 

 

32



Page 19 of 61 

 

 
 

 
 

 
This priority continues from last year – we want 
to improve the quality of communication and 
information given to patients and the public. 
 
Aim / Goal: To increase patient satisfaction 
about how they receive communication and 
information. 
 
Initiatives in 2010/2011: 
 

○ Sourced new providers for customer care training 
○ Developed a training programme with Christ Church Canterbury (CCC) 

University for communication and complaints handling – this is being attended by 
multidisciplinary groups of staff 

○ Developed 65 new leaflets for patients during the year for different care areas 
across the Trust 

○ Introduced new bedside information folders for patients across the Trust 
 
New Initiatives for 2011/2012: 
 

○ Secured funding for further training days with CCC 
○ Commencing targeted training for high profile areas and where communication is 

challenging 
○ Seeking to improve compliance with national survey questions relating to 

Communication and information: 
 

 Current % Aim % 

% patients who were involved as much as you wanted to be in 
decisions about your care and treatment? 

49 59 

% patients who could find someone on the hospital staff to talk to 
you about your worries and fears 

35 45 

% Positive Response to:  Were you given enough privacy when 
discussing your condition or treatment? 

67 77 

% patients who had been told about medication side effects to 
watch for when you went home. 

50 60 

% Patients who were told by hospital staff who to contact if you 
were worried about your condition or treatment after you left 
hospital. 

79 89 

% Patients to whom staff has explained what would be done 
during the operation or procedure 

68 78 

% Patients who were told how they could expect to feel after you 
had the operation or procedure 

52 62 

 
Board Sponsor: Flo Panel Coates, Chief Nurse 
Implementation Lead: Claire Roberts, Head of Quality and Governance 
Monitoring: via Quality and Safety Committee 

 

Patient communications 

 

33



Page 20 of 61 

 

 
 
 

 
Aim / Goal 
Following significant public interest in  
relation to privacy and dignity in care, 
the Department of Health gave a  
commitment that mixed sex  
accommodation in hospitals would  
eliminated by March 2011.  
 
The NHS Operating Framework for 2011/12 
 requires all providers of NHS funded care to confirm whether they are compliant with the 
national definition ‘to eliminate mixed sex accommodation except where it is in the overall 
best interests of the patient, or reflects their patient choice’.  
 
The majority of breaches (episodes of non-compliance) occur on our Kent and Sussex site 
and the Trust is unable to declare full compliance until the New Tunbridge Wells Hospital 
opens at Pembury, enabling the reconfiguration of services to occur. 
 
○ Reduce the number of breaches with respect to delivering same sex accommodation 

(DSSA) to 0 at Maidstone Hospital 
 
 
Initiatives in 2010/2011 
 
○ Particular focus has been given to the management of the Clinical Decisions Unit, 

Medical Assessment Unit and Trauma and Orthopaedics – which present particular 
challenges in meeting both clinical need and DSSA requirements 

○ A GP referral assessment bay has been established on the Medical Assessment Unit 
which allows the team to better manage the bed stock, ensuring only appropriate 
patients are subsequently placed in in-patient beds 

○ Weekly reports are sent to the Divisional Leadership Teams to enable them to plan their 
elective case loads to better meet DSSA requirements 

○ All breaches are reported daily via the Site Practitioners and these patients are 
prioritised for transfer to a speciality gender appropriate bed within 24hrs of the breach 
occurring 

 
 
Initiatives in 2011/2012 
 
○ Tunbridge Wells Hospital at Pembury will be fully operational by the end of September 

2011. This site provides care in a 100% single room environment. This will directly 
benefit all patients who would previously have been treated at the Kent & Sussex 
Hospital, as well as the majority of trauma and orthopaedics treated at Maidstone 
Hospital 

 
○ Some estates work is also planned for the Clinical Decisions Unit to enable enhanced 

privacy and single sex accommodation 
 

 

Same sex accommodation 

 

34



Page 21 of 61 

 

○ The transfer of some services from Maidstone Hospital to Tunbridge Wells Hospital will 
allow for a review of bed management processes at Maidstone and provide ‘decant’ 
space to allow for ward refurbishment. 

 
 
 
Board Sponsor: Flo Panel Coates, Chief Nurse 
Implementation Lead: John Kennedy, Deputy Director of Nursing 
Monitoring: Quality and Safety Committee 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

35



Page 22 of 61 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

In this following section we 

report on statements relating to the quality 
of NHS services provided as stipulated in 
the regulations.  
 
The content is common to all providers so 
that the accounts can be comparable 
between organisations and provides 
assurance that MTW’s Board has 
reviewed and engaged in national 
initiatives which link strongly to quality 
improvement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

36



Page 23 of 61 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
During 2010/2011 the Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust (MTW) provided and/or 
sub-contracted 120 NHS services. 
 
MTW has reviewed all the data available to them on the quality of care in 120 of these NHS 
services. 
 
The income generated by the NHS services reviewed in 2010/2011 represents 100 per 
cent of the total income generated from the provision of NHS services by the Trust for 
2010/2011. 
 
Clinical Audit 
 
During 2010/2011, 342 clinical audits were carried out in the trust. This was a mixture of 
national and local audits. 43 national clinical audits and 4 national confidential enquiries 
covered NHS services that MTW provides. 
  
We participated in 77% of national clinical audits and 100% of national confidential 
enquiries, which we were eligible to participate in. These are listed below alongside the 
number of cases submitted to each audit or enquiry as a percentage of the number of 
registered cases required by the terms of that audit or enquiry.  
  
 
 

National Clinical Audits for 
inclusion in Quality Accounts 2011 

   Comments 

Recruited patients during 2010 - 11 Participation  
Y, N or NA 

No of cases 
submitted 

% cases 
submitted 

 

Peri and Neonatal     
Perinatal mortality (CEMACH) Y 27 100%  
Neonatal Intensive and Special Care 
(NNAP) 

Y 541 100%  

Children     
Paediatric pneumonia (British Thoracic 
Society) 

Y 14 100%  

Paediatric asthma (British Thoracic 
Society) 

Y 25 63% 
40 cases required 
from trust. 

Paediatric fever (College of 
Emergency Medicine) 

Y 100 100%  

Diabetes (RCPH National Paediatric 
Diabetes Audit) 

Y 140 100%  

Adult Care 
Emergency use of oxygen (British 
Thoracic Society)

N 0 - 
Did not register for 
this year’s audit.

 
Statements relating to the quality of NHS 
services provided as required within the 
regulations 
 

37



Page 24 of 61 

 

Registered for 
current year. 

Adult community acquired pneumonia 
(British Thoracic Society) 

Y 15   
Still submitting data. 
Cut off 31st May. 

Non invasive ventilation (NIV) - adults 
(British Thoracic Society) 

Y 50 100%  

Pleural procedures (British Thoracic 
Society) 

N 0 - 

Did not register for 
this audit. 
Registered for 
2011/12 

Cardiac Arrest (National Cardiac Arrest 
Audit) 

N 0 - 

Did not register for 
this audit. 
Registered for 
2011/12 

Vital signs in majors (College of 
Emergency Medicine) 

Y 100 100%  

Adult Critical Care (Case Mix 
programme) 

Y 966 100%  

Potential donor audit (NHS Blood & 
Transplant) 

Y 0 - 
Registered but no 
cases submitted to 
date 

Long Term Conditions     

Diabetes (National Adult Diabetes 
Audit) 

N 0 0 

No data submitted 
this year. Lack of 
Diabeta 3 means 
collection and 
submission not 
possible.  System to 
be in place next 
year. 

Heavy menstrual bleeding (RGOG 
National Audit of HMB) 

Y 19 100% 

Data collection 
started in February 
2011 all returned 
questionnaires  
submitted to RCOG. 
Data collection 
ongoing. 

Chronic Pain (National Pain Audit) N 0 0 

No data submitted 
last year.  
Registered for 
2011/12 

Ulcerative colitis and Crohn's disease 
(National IBD audit) 

Y 18 18 to date 

80 entries required. 
Still submitting data. 
Data cut off point 
31/07/11 

Parkinson’s Disease (National 
Parkinson's Audit) 

N 0 0 
Did not submit data. 
Registered for 
current year. 

COPD (British Thoracic Society / 
European audit) 

Y 63 63 to date  

Adult asthma (British Thoracic Society) N 0 0 
Did not submit data. 
Registered for 
current year. 

Bronchiectasis (British Thoracic 
Society) 

Y 10 100%  

Elective Procedures     

Hip, knee and ankle replacements 
(National Joint Registry) 

Y 89 89 to date 
Data collection still 
ongoing for this 
year. 

Elective surgery (National PROMs Y 148 148 to date Data collection still 

38



Page 25 of 61 

 

Programme) ongoing for this 
year. 

Coronary angioplasty (NICOR Adult 
cardiac interventions audit) 

Y 258 100%  

Cardiovascular disease     
Familial hypercholesterolaemia 
(National Clinical Audit of Management 
of FH) 

Y 187 100%  

Acute Myocardial Infarction and other 
ACS (MINAP) 

Y 312 100%  

Heart Failure (Heart Failure Audit) Y 427 96%  

Acute Stroke (SINAP) N NA - 

Did not take part in 
the pilot study. 
Registered for next 
round of the audit. 

Stroke Care (National Sentinel Stoke 
Audit) 

Y 113 94%  

Renal Disease     
Renal Colic (College of Emergency 
Medicine) 

Y 103 100%  

Cancer     
Lung Cancer (National Lung Cancer 
Audit) 

Y 193 100%  

Bowel Cancer (National Bowel Cancer 
Audit Programme) 

Y 288 100%  

Head & Neck Cancer (DHANO) Y 54 100%  
Trauma     

Hip Fracture (National Hip Fracture 
Database) 

Y 310 73%  

Severe Trauma (Trauma Audit & 
Research Network) TARN 

Y TBC - 
Trust registered. 
Numbers and % tbc 

Falls and non-hip fractures (National 
falls and Bone Health Audit) 

Y 60 50% 
Only submitted data 
from one site. 

Blood transfusion     
O negative blood use (National 
comparative audit of blood transfusion) 

Y 40 100%  

Platelet use (National comparative 
audit of blood transfusion) 

N 0 0 
Trust did not submit 
data. Trust will 
register for 2011-12   

National Confidential Enquiries     
Parenteral Nutrition Y 51 100%  
Surgery in the Elderly Y 29 100%  
Cardiac Arrest Audit Y 11 100%  

Peri-Operative Care Audit Y 113 100%  

     

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

39



Page 26 of 61 

 

National Audits for quality accounts (Not submitted)  
Reasons why data not submitted 
  

NDA: National Diabetes Audit Diabeta 3 to be installed this year 2011, following 
ongoing IT problems.  
Paediatric data submitted. 

NLCA: Lung Cancer Fully participating for 2010-11. See data in main table. 

TARN: severe trauma Fully participating for 2010-11. See data in main table. 

  
Eight national audits were published in 2009/10 with action to be taken in 2010/11 –  
  

National Diabetes Audit – Fulfilling 
the requirement for the Diabetes 
NSF 

MTW continue to work with IT for the full 
implementation of the Diabeta 3 Database.  Actions in 
place to implement Sept 11. 

National Mastectomy and Breast 
Reconstruction Audit. 
(RCN/NCASP) 

None needed as Trust met standards Noted by 
division and presented to Trust Board 

NCEPOD – For better or Worse? 
Review of the care of patients who 
died within 30 days of receiving 
systemic anti-cancer therapy 

None needed as Trust met standards. Noted by 
division and presented to Trust Board 

NHS Patient Survey – Adult 
Inpatient Survey 2008 

Communication and information remains a key issue 
and remains one of our priorities for 2011-12. 

Mandatory National Audit: Head & 
Neck Cancer (DAHNO) 

The trust fully participated in this audit and have 
overcome their data capture problems by closer 
working with the Kent Cancer Network and more 
accurate reporting from the INFOFLEX system.   

Mandatory National Audit: Bowel 
Cancer (NBOCASP) 

Senior consultants have reviewed the 2009 audit 
report.  Continue to submit data.  

National Mandatory audit: 
Oesophago-gastric (stomach) 
cancer 
(AUGIS/NCASP) 

Continue to submit data. No actions were necessary 
from this report.  

National audit of the Liverpool 
Care Pathway Care of the dying 
(2nd round) 

Improve monitoring and measurement of LCP data to 
mark improvements, Training  given to medical and 
nursing staff in delivery of end of life care and to 
improve spiritual and psychological care provided to 
patients and next of kin/carers.  In 2011/12 the trust 
will be participating in round 3 of this audit. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

40



Page 27 of 61 

 

 

The reports of 32 national clinical audits were reviewed by the provider in 
2010/2011 and Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust intends to take 
the following actions to improve the quality of healthcare provided: 

 

National Annual reports 
published March 2010 - 
March 2011 

Report 
Received 

 

Peri and Neonatal   

Perinatal Mortality (CEMACH) Y 

 

Report received in March 2011. Review 
currently being undertaken and any required 
actions identified. Action Plan expected by 
July 2011. 
 

Children   

Paediatric pneumonia (British 
Thoracic Society) 

Y 
Data analysis received from BTS in April.  
Action plan to be written by June 2011. 

Paediatric asthma (British 
Thoracic Society) 

Y 
Data analysis received in Division in February 
2011. Action plan to be written by June 2011. 

Paediatric Intensive Care 
(PICANet) 

NA 

 

Trust does not provide these services. MTW 
Special Care Baby Unit operates at Levels 1 
and 2.  This audit relates to Level 3 Units. 
MTW Not invited to participate. 
 

Audit of Pain in Children within 
A&E (National CEM) 

Y 

 

Report received November 2010.  
Key Actions: Improvements included 
introducing electronic software to which 
includes a mandatory pain score field. Nurses 
to be trained and accredited to initiate initial 
prescribing of analgesia. 
 

Adult care   

Adult Community acquired 
pneumonia (British Thoracic 
Society) 

Y 

 

Data analysis received September 2010.  The 
Division has reviewed the report and 
developed an action plan on developing 
improved training for Doctors in the 
management of pneumonia. 
 

Non Invasive Ventilation (NIV) - 
adults (British Thoracic 
Society) 

Y 

 

Report received. Data analysis of this pilot 
study was received in September 2010.This 
data analysis page concluded with the need 
for an annual audit of NIV.  MTW was not one 
of the 61 organisations that took part in 2010. 
MTW has submitted data for the full 2011 
audit and awaits the next report. 
 
 

41



Page 28 of 61 

 

Long Term Conditions   

Diabetes (National Adult 
Diabetes Audit) 

Y 

The Diabetes audit report was received in 
April 2010.  
Key Actions: to install the Diabeta 3 system 
across the trust to enable electronic data 
submission for this national audit project.  
The trust has registered to take part in the 
2011-12 audits. 
 

Parkinson's Disease (National 
Parkinson's Audit) 

Y 

Data analysis received May 2010. The trust 
did not participate so has reviewed the data 
from other trusts to discover if improvements 
can be made at MTW.  Will be participating in 
the 2011-12 audits. 
 

Adult Asthma (British Thoracic 
Society) 

Y 

The data analysis for this audit was received 
in June 2010. The analysis highlighted 
overarching national concerns with the 
general management of asthmatics in 
Outpatient Departments. Therefore learning 
from this report was limited. The trust is 
registered and ready to submit data this year. 
 

Bronchiectasis (British 
Thoracic Society) 

Y 

Analysis received March 2011. 
Key Actions: a new patient management flow 
sheet to be introduced. Spirometry and 
sputum culture to be performed before 
antibiotics administered. 
 

National CEM Asthma in adults 
and Children (College of 
Emergency Medicine) 

Y 

Report received in November 2010 
Key Actions: asthma proforma modified to 
provide better recoding of nebuliser 
treatments; junior doctor clinical handbook 
reviewed to ensure it includes the latest 
guidance on treating moderate to severe 
asthma; peak flow monitors to be available at 
every triage; the electronic Manchester triage 
solution implemented. 

 

Elective Procedures   

Hip, Knee and ankle 
replacements (National Joint 
Registry) 

Y 

Report received in January 2011. 
Actions include: Conducting a five year follow 
up of total condylar type knee replacements. 
Surgeons performing patellofemoral joint 
replacement aware of the high failure rates 
associated with this procedure and continue to 
audit and review of the results of uni-
compartmental knee arthroscopy. 
 

Elective Surgery (National 
PROMS Programme) 

Y 
Reports are published on a monthly basis and 
reviewed by Pre Assessment staff in the 
Planned Services Division. 

42



Page 29 of 61 

 

Coronary angioplasty (NICOR 
Adult Cardiac Interventions 
audit) 

Y 

Report received in March 2010 and this was 
reviewed by our Consultant Cardiologist in the 
Emergency Services Division. Action plan 
being developed, planned to be completed by 
June 2011. 
 

Cardiovascular Disease   

Familial hypercholesterolemia 
(National Clinical Audit of mgt 
of FH Royal College of 
Physicians) 

Y 

Report received in November 2010  
Key Actions: to implement greater use of DNA 
studies and an increase in nursing support 
staff within clinics. 
 

Acute Myocardial Infarction  & 
other ACS (MINAP) 

Y 

Report received January 2011. They are in 
the process of developing an action plan, 
working with East Kent Hospitals to improve 
care for MTW patients who are treated at their 
cardiac centre. 
 

Heart Failure (Heart Failure 
Audit) 

Y 

Report received January 2011.  
Key Actions: making improvements to the 
patient pathway (streamlining), ensuring heart 
failure specialists are in post to treat patients, 
auditing heart failure NICE guidelines are 
during 2011-12 to ensure patients are 
receiving appropriate medication. 
 

Pulmonary Hypertension 
(Pulmonary Hypertension 
Audit) 

Y 

The report was received in September 2010.  
All patients with pulmonary hypertension 
presenting to MTW are referred to London for 
treatment. This benchmarking study was the 
first national data collection of pulmonary 
hypertension. The division will use the 
information to inform their working 
relationships with the London trusts. 
 

Cancer   

Head & neck cancer (DHANO) Y 

Report received in January 2011. Currently 
being reviewed at Cancer Network Group for 
action plan development by each trust within 
the network group. Kent wide action plan is 
planned for completion by August 2011. 
 

Trauma   

Hip Fracture (National Hip 
Fracture Database) 

Y 

Report received January 2011. 
Key Actions: Ring-fencing of Hip fracture bed, 
prioritisation of patients on trauma lists, 
dedicated hip fracture lists and continued 
audit and surveillance to minimise pressure 
ulcers. The trust has appointed a dedicated 
orthogeriatric Consultant. Falls assessment 
will be promoted with the appointment of the 
dedicated orthogeriatrician and development 
of falls clinic. 

43



Page 30 of 61 

 

Severe Trauma (Trauma Audit 
& Research Network) TARN 

N 

Trust did not submit data for 2010-11 
therefore no report has been received for 
review.  Only 60% of trusts are currently 
taking part and receiving national reports. The 
Trust will be participating in the 2011/12 audit. 
 

Audit of management of 
Fracture Neck of Femur within 
A&E. (National CEM) 

Y 

Report received November 2010.  
Reviewed at High Level Exec Committee in 
Feb 2011. Action plan has been developed. 
Improvements included introducing electronic 
software to which includes a mandatory pain 
score field. Nurses to be trained and 
accredited to initiate initial prescribing of 
analgesia. 
 

Blood transfusion   

O neg blood use (National 
Comparative Audit of Blood 
Transfusion) 

Y 

Report was received in April 2011. 
The Transfusion Committee will discuss the 
findings in June 2011 (Next quarterly 
meeting). 
 

Platelet use (National 
Comparative Audit of Blood 
Transfusion) 

N 

The report has not yet been published - 
delays from NCABT. The trust is registered to 
take part in 2011-12. 
 

National Audit of the use of red 
cells in neonates and Children 
(National Comparative Audit of 
Blood Transfusion) 

Y 

Report received in June 2010.  
Key actions:  New Guidelines have been 
written on the use of red blood cells in 
neonates and children and incorporated into 
the Trust Transfusion Policy.  
 

Patient Surveys   

National NHS Inpatient Patient 
Survey 2010 (Pickers) 

Y 

Report received February 2011. 
Key Actions: to address issues associated 
with patient’s dissatisfaction with staff 
communication, waits for treatment, delayed 
discharges and noise at night. See also main 
body of the Quality Accounts re actions 
relating to survey. 
 

National Paediatric Outpatients 
Survey 2010  (Pickers) 

Y 

Report received in November 2010.  
Key Actions:  Clearer information letters 
developed regarding format of outpatient 
appointments, Guidance documentation 
written on information for medical staff when 
providing details of tests required, Training 
and development sessions around health 
professional’s communication with patients. 

44



Page 31 of 61 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

National Maternity Survey 2010 
(Pickers) 

Y 

Report received in September 2010.  
Key Actions: increase choice of birth place 
(new hospital at Pembury will address this), 
conduct a follow on maternity questionnaire to 
seek latest views, increase the number of anti-
natal classes available, review facilities in 
other organisations that provide services to 
provide post natal care. 
 

National Cancer Patient 
Experience Survey  (DoH) 

Y 

Report received in January 2011. 
Key Actions: address patient concerns relating 
to privacy and dignity and communication 
from staff. Findings mirror patient views in the 
National Inpatient Survey. 

Confidential Enquiries   

NCEPOD - An age old problem 
(NCEPOD) 

Y 

Report received in November 2010.  
Key Actions:  Business case for 
Orthogeriatrician consultant has been agreed. 
AKI to be included on local education 
programmes. Formalist attendance of 
anaesthetists at T&O meetings. Surgical 
review of patients to meet 12 hourly target 
once move to new hospital as 24 hour on call 
service will be provided. Daily dedicated 
NCEPOD lists will be implemented once move 
to new hospital. Move planned in September 
2011 
 

NCEPOD - A mixed bag - 
Parenteral Nutrition (NCEPOD) 

Y 

Report received in June 2010. 
Key Actions: Write Policy for Parenteral 
Nutrition. More surgical input encouraged with 
a named Surgeon to attend the Nutritional 
Steering Committee. Local audits have been 
completed to assess compliance with national 
results. 
 

45



Page 32 of 61 

 

The reports of 189 local clinical audits were reviewed by the provider in 
2010/2011 and actions that Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust 
has or intends to take to improve the quality of healthcare provided 
include: 
 
 
 
 

Radiotherapists identified a need to develop an electronic pathway to ensure 
patients plans are ready 24 hours prior to their appointments. This has been 
developed and is available for network use via network access 
 
Consultant Urologist purchased a robotic camera holder to assist with 
Laparoscopic radical prostatectomies as a result of the first round of the audit.  
The re-audit showed that this has lead to reduction in operation times, 
reductions in blood loss and reduced length of stay in hospital for patients 
 
Anaesthetists identified the need for a standardised handover chart to be 
added to the back of the anaesthetic sheet. This will prompt the verbal 
handover of all patient information with the transfer of patient from recovery to 
ward to insure all relevant information is passed on to optimise care for patients 
 
The infection control team audited the cleaning and disinfecting of flexible 
endoscopes. A water level indicator has been fixed to the decontamination 
sink to ensure accurate measurements and dilution levels of detergents when 
manually cleaning endoscopes.  Additional staff training carried out to 
ensure staff have retained competency assessments. Staff involved in internal 
training have undergone a “train the trainer” course 
 
The paediatric team audited the use of intravenous gentamicin for neonates. 
A double checking prompt was instigated and the re-audit showed that this had 
increased the rate of compliance with recording information within the case 
notes from 67% to 91%.  Formal documentation of delays in preparation is now 
95% where previously this information was not recorded at all. Documentation 
of gentamicin doses administered within 1 hour is now 94% and was previously 
2.3% 
 
The Breast Care Nurse specialists have introduced wrist bands for patients 
having axillary node clearance or sentinel lymph node biopsy that is worn on 
the affected arm to alert staff that no invasive procedure or blood pressure 
monitoring should be undertaken on this arm. This is to reduce the risk of 
Lymphoedema following breast surgery. Laminated signs are also put over the 
patient’s bed with instruction for non-use of the effected arm 
 
The Infection Prevention team have produced a sticker that is placed in the 
patient’s notes alerting staff of a positive diagnosis of Clostridium difficile. This 
helps ensure that patients are easily identified and treated appropriately 
 
A new pathway has been written in conjunction with the paediatric and A&E 
teams to ensure appropriate triaging, assessment and onward referral 
when children present in A&E with a temperature of 38 degrees or above. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

46



Page 33 of 61 

 

 
An audit on the safe use and management of sharps has led to the purchase 
of additional brackets and trays to put sharps bins at a safe level for use. 
Correct sized bins are available to prevent protruding of sharps from boxes, 
and one brand system to be in use throughout the trust for consistency and 
cost reduction. 
 
The Tissue Viability nurse has implemented the use of aqueous cream as a 
soap substitute for high risk patients by working with pharmacy and ward 
matrons/sisters. 
 
Introduction of a core handover template for the management of pressure 
ulcers.  Introduction of a Care Pathway for the management of Grade 3 & 4 
pressure ulcers. Review Trusts Pressure Ulcer management guideline/policy. 
Implement the use of film dressings to heels and heel elevation in Trauma & 
Orthopaedics. 
 
The Physicians have developed a pro-forma to be completed on the post-take 
ward round. This will incorporate all the necessary information required to meet 
the Royal College of Physicians record keeping standards and improve the 
quality and content of documentation. 
 

 
  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

47



Page 34 of 61 

 

  
 
 
 

 
Participation in clinical research 

  
Commitment to research as a driver  
for improving the quality of care and 
 patient experience 
 

Regulation 
 

The number of patients receiving NHS  
services provided or sub-contracted by  
Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust in 2010/2011 that were recruited during that 
period to participate in research approved by a research ethics committee was 2533. 
 
Participation in clinical research demonstrates Maidstone & Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust 
commitment to improving the quality of care we offer and to making our contribution to wider 
health improvement. Our clinical staff stay abreast of the latest possible treatment 
possibilities and active participation in research leads to successful patient outcomes. 
 
We were involved in conducting 354 clinical research studies in Oncology, Haematology, 
Radiotherapy, Rheumatology, Cardiology, Diabetes, Ophthalmology, Stroke Services, 
Breast Care, General Surgery, Anaesthetics, Orthopaedics, Elderly Care, Endocrinology, 
Gastroenterology, Respiratory, Paediatrics, Obstetrics and Gynaecology, Radiology, 
Pathology and Neurology during 2010/2011.  

  

There were 84 clinical staff participating in research approved by a research ethics 
committee at Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust during 2010/2011. These staff 
participated in research covering 22 of medical specialties. 
  

As well, in the last three years, 40 publications have resulted from our involvement in NIHR 
research, which shows our commitment to transparency and desire to improve patient 
outcomes and experience across the NHS. 
 

Our engagement with clinical research also demonstrates Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells 
NHS Trust commitment to testing and offering the latest medical treatments and techniques. 
 
Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust is committed to increasing the number of 
research trials it sponsors, to both widen its scope of research and increase the number of 
MTW-employed chief investigators. MTW-sponsored projects and proposals, that do not 
involve a medicinal product, include making improvements in the diagnosis and treatment of 
breast cancer, improving pain management following hip and knee surgery, treatment of non 
small cell lung cancer in the elderly and patient verses hospital-led follow up for patients 
following gastro-oesophageal cancer surgery. 
 
 
 
 

Research 

48



Page 35 of 61 

 

 

 

 
 

 
Use of the CQUIN payment framework 
 
A proportion of Maidstone and Tunbridge 
 Wells NHS Trust income in 2010/11 was  
conditional on achieving quality improvement  
and innovation goals agreed between Maidstone 
and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust and any person 
or body they entered into a contract, agreement 
or arrangement with for the provision of NHS  
services, through the Commissioning for Quality 
and Innovation payment framework. 
 
Further details of the agreed goals for 2010/11 and for the following 12 month period are 
available electronically at www.mtw.nhs.uk  
 
Within the commissioning payment framework for 2010/11, quality improvement and 
innovation goals were set as indicated in the table below. 
 

Indicators with Financial Implications 
(Based on Year End) 

Year End/Local Survey National Survey 
2010 

Plan Actual RAG Actual RAG 

CQUINs   90      

1 

% of Adult Inpatients that have a VTE Risk 
Assessment  - runs one month behind 

90% 33.8%   
  

Not applicable  

2 

% Positive Response to:  Were you involved as 
much as you wanted to be in decisions about 
your care and treatment?   

68.29% 87.0% 
Local 

Survey 
49.00% 

2010 
Survey 

% Positive Response to:  Did you find someone 
on the hospital staff to talk to you about your 
worries and fears? 

68.29% 87.00% 
Local 

Survey 
35.00% 

2010 
Survey 

% Positive Response to:  Were you given 
enough privacy when discussing your condition 
or treatment?  

68.29% 94.00% 
Local 

Survey 
67.00% 

2010 
Survey 

% Positive Response to:  Did a member of staff 
tell about medication side effects to watch for 
when you went home? 

68.29% 60.00% 
Local 

Survey 
50.00% 

2010 
Survey 

% Positive Response to:  Did hospital staff tell 
you who to contact if you were worried about 
your condition or treatment after you left 
hospital? 

68.29% 68.00% 
Local 

Survey 
79.00% 

2010 
Survey 

3a 
% All Slips, Trips & Falls per 10,000 admissions 
- runs one month behind - 7.5% improvement 

1.65% 1.17%   
  

 Not applicable 

3b 
% of Falls with Risk Assessment & relevant 
action completed - 80% or 50% improvement on 
baseline 

80% 85.9%   
Not applicable   

  

Goals agreed with 
commissioners 

 

 

49



Page 36 of 61 

 

4a 
% of Stroke patients receiving all 9 Key Sentinal 
Audit Indicators - 75% or 20% improvement on 
baseline 

75% 75.2%   
  

Not applicable  

4b 
% of Stroke patients with EDD <7 days of 
admission - 80% or 20% improvement on 
baseline 

80% 93.7%   
  

Not applicable  

4c 
% of Stroke referral letters sent to next provider 
at least 24hrs before discharge - 90% or 20% 
improvement on baseline 

20% 26.0%   
  

Not applicable  

5a 
% of inpatient discharge summaries sent 
electronically  

90% 49.0%   
  

Not applicable  

5a 
% of outpatient letters sent within 2 weeks of 
clinic and conforming to revised template 

85% 85.0%   
  

Not applicable  

6a 

Pre-Op Process % Positive Response to: Did a 
member of staff explain what would be done 
during the operation or procedure? 

78% 88.0% 
Local 

Survey 
68%  

2010 
Survey 

Pre-Op Process % Positive Response to: Were 
you told how you could expect to feel after you 
had the operation or procedure? 

62% 75.0% 
Local 

Survey 
 52% 

2010 
Survey 

6b 

Food & Nutrition % Positive Response to: How 
would you rate the hospital food?   

91% 90% 
Local 

Survey 
 48% 

2010 
Survey 

Food & Nutrition % Positive Response to: Did 
you get enough help from staff to eat your 
meals? 

89% 90% 
Local 

Survey 
 63% 

2010 
Survey 

7 Referrals to Stop Smoking Service - 1500 in year 1500 1323   
  

Not applicable  

8a 

Diabetes - Audit of Insulin Medication Errors - 
24%  

24% 15.5%   
  

Not applicable  

8b 

Diabetes - Audit re: No of inpatients with 
diabetes who feel that there is usually a meal 
choice suitable for their diabetes - 25% 
improvement on baseline 

52% 69%   
  

Not applicable  

9a 
Eligible staff trained in Dementia Awareness - 
Plan is 70 

70 83   
  

Not applicable  

9b 
Attendance at WK Dementia Forum 80.0% 90.0%   

  
Not applicable  

10 

Improve Quality of patient care - process 
milestones for 4 key areas:  Myocardial 
Infarction, Community Acquired Pneumonia, 
Heart Failure, Hip & Knee Replacements - Sept 
2010 onwards 

85.0% 85.0%   
  

Not applicable  

 
You will note that a number of these are linked to the key priorities that were set for 
2010/11. 
 
Similarly we have used these outcomes to help inform our decision on what to make key 
priorities for 2011/12. We have included the end of year position for the local inpatient 
survey as well as those published for the 2010 National Survey. 
 
On reviewing our data we found that we had a corresponding dip in patient satisfaction 
levels from our local patient surveys that were carried out during the same month as 
patients who were targeted for the national Survey. Since then (summer 2010) we have 
been able to see an increase in satisfaction levels reported locally since then. 
 
 

50



Page 37 of 61 

 

 
 
 

Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS  
Trust is required to register with the Care 
Quality Commission and is registered to 
provide the following services:  
 
○ Maternity and midwifery services 
○ Termination of pregnancy 
○ Surgical procedures 
○ Diagnostic and screening services 
○ Treatment of disease, disorder and or injury 
○ Patient transport 

 
No conditions were applied to the registration.  
 
The Care Quality Commission has not taken enforcement action against 
Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust during 2010/11 
 
The Trust was part of an integrated inspection of Safeguarding and Looked after Children’s 
Services in Kent – West Kent PCT and providers – undertaken by the Care Quality 
Commission and Ofsted took place during October of 2010.  
 
The services which were inspected included the Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS 
Trust, the Dartford and Gravesham NHS Trust, Kent and Medway NHS Partnership and 
Care Trust and also West Kent Community Health. 
 
The Inspection Process   
 
This inspection was conducted alongside the Ofsted-led programme of children’s services 
inspections.  These focus on safeguarding and the care of Looked after Children (LAC) 
within a specific local authority.  The two-week inspection process comprised  a range of 
methods for gathering information – document reviews, interviews, focus groups (including 
where possible with children and young people)  and visits – in order to develop a 
corroborated set of evidence which contributed to the overall framework for the integrated 
inspection.  
 
The inspection report made  18 recommendations, a number of which were to be the 
responsibility of all the agencies who had been part of the inspection and some which were 
specific to particular agencies. 
 
11 of the recommendations were joint, of the remaining 7, 2 were specific to Primary Care 
Trusts , 4 for all Health Partners and 1 to the Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust 
(number 13)   
 
Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells Trust has completed an action plan in relation to all 
recommendations for Health Partner, joint and Trust Specific. This action plan is monitored 
by a forum chaired by the West Kent lead nurse for Safeguarding. The Trust has appointed 
into the second post for Safeguarding since the review and is establishing champions for 
safe guarding children across all its departments.  

 

Statements from the CQC 

 

51



Page 38 of 61 

 

The 18 recommendations are as follows:  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 38 of 61

1. (Joint) Ensure that all partners are equally conversant with the threshold for accessing social 
care services and provide the appropriate levels of referral information. 
 

2. (Joint) Establish clear arrangements for the referral and treatment of young people aged 16-18 
requiring a CAMHS service 
 

3. (Joint) Ensure that all assessments of looked after children are completed to the standards 
required by statutory guidance, contain the necessary health and educational information and are 
included on the child’s record. 
 

4. (Joint) Improve the quality of case planning and ensure that all relevant professionals are able to 
participate and contribute to the process. 
 

5. West Kent PCT to improve audit and monitoring of LAC needs and outcomes in order to ensure 
that an equitable and compliant service is in place for children living in Kent. 
 

6. (Joint) Establish systematic performance management processes at all levels to improve the 
quality of practice and management across the partnership. 
 

7. Health partners improve audit, monitoring and analysis of safeguarding data to ensure the 
service is properly resourced and risks identified 
 

8. (Joint) Improve the child protection conference process to ensure that professionals are properly 
prepared and service user confidence is restored. 
 

9. (Joint) Ensure that each service subscribes to a suitably independent interpreter service  
 

10. (Joint) Ensure that all looked after children can access CAMHS up until 18 years of age 
 

11. Health partners engage with locally agreed CAF arrangements to improve understanding of the 
process monitor referral rates and thresholds 
 

12. Ensure that the out of hours GP service includes clear arrangements for safeguarding, 
including training and supervision of practitioners. 
 

13. Complete the strengthening of support arrangements for safeguarding in MTW particularly in 
A&E.  
 

14. (Joint) Review the [safeguarding] workforce and take the necessary steps to address capacity 
and capability shortfalls. 
 

15. (Joint) Develop a multi-disciplinary looked after children strategy and clarify management and 
leadership roles and accountabilities 
 

16. (Joint) Develop a screening tool for substance misuse for use with looked after children and 
young people 
 

17. There is a clear strategy and plan for the health care of all LAC in Kent including annual 
reporting function to the PCT board and KSCB 
 

18. Ensure that developments in ICT for community providers link effectively with partner agencies 

to improve information flows for children's health and safeguarding 

52



Page 39 of 61 

 

  
 

Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS 
Trust is committed to providing a service  
of the highest quality. To achieve this data 
that clinical, operational and strategic  
decisions are based on need to be of the 
highest quality. Specifically, MTW needs 
to ensure its data quality so that it can: 
 

· Provide effective and efficient services to its patients, staff and partners 

· Produce accurate and comprehensive management information on which timely, 
informed decisions are made to inform the future of the Trust 

· Monitor and review its activities and performance 

· Produce accurate data to ensure appropriate reimbursement and account for 
performance as required 

· Meet the standards set out for Information Governance and the requirements of the 
Information Commissioner 

 
During 2010-11 the Trust successfully completed the completeness and validity checks set 
out as part of the Information Governance Toolkit. This is further confirmed by the results of 
the Audit Commission’s annual Payment by Results audit along with the NHS Information 
Centre’s Secondary Uses Service data quality reports. 
 
The Trust has established a Data Quality Steering Group to take action on data quality 
issues and this has already started to improve data quality. Areas identified for 
improvement during 2011-12 are:- 
 

· NHS Number Completeness 

· A&E Ethnicity data 

· Outpatient Referral Source data 
 
NHS Number and General Medical Practice Code Validity 
 
 Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust submitted records during 2010-2011 to the 
Secondary Uses service for inclusion in the Hospital Episode Statistics which are included 
in the latest published data. The percentage of records in the published data: 
  
– Which included the patient’s valid NHS number was: 
 
97.3% for admitted patient care; 
98.6% for out patient care; and 
82.7% for accident and emergency care. 
 
– Which included the patient’s valid General Medical Practice Code was: 
 
100% for admitted patient care; 
100% for out patient care; and 
99.9% for accident and emergency care.  
 
 

 

Improving MTW’s data quality 
 

 

53



Page 40 of 61 

 

Information Governance Toolkit attainment levels 
 
Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust Information Governance Assessment Report 
overall score for 2010/2011 was 60% and was graded red on the IGT Grading Scheme. 
 
The Trust has developed a detailed action plan, taking account of the identified gaps and 
weaknesses, for improvements to information governance arrangements within the 
organisation. The action plan has been reviewed and approved by the Trust Board and 
submitted to the Strategic Health Authority. 
 
There are four areas where MTW specifically needs to improve: 
 

l Information governance training – we did not meet the 95% target for all staff to be 
trained by the end of March 2011. E-Learning and face-to-face training is now 
readily available for staff. 

 

l Informing patients about how their information may be used – to address this MTW 
now has patient information leaflets, posters and guidelines for staff. 

 

l The transfer of documents that contain patient identifiable information needs to be 
identified and recorded – this is due to be completed by the end of June 2011 and 
evaluated by the end of September 2011. 

 

l All assets that hold personal data (all computer equipment) should be protected by 
encryption – an action plan is in place. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

54



Page 41 of 61 

 

 
 

                                    Review of Quality Performance 
 
 
                                                With this section we have reviewed our performance   
                                                against key priorities that we set for last year and also other  
                                                areas of quality performance.  

 
 

 
Patient safety 
 
 

Infection control 
 
We achieved our targets for 2010/11 
  
All admissions are screened for MRSA according to Department of Health 
recommendations. The Trust MRSA screening policy and a notice of compliance are 
available to the public on the Trust internet site. 
 
Over the last seven years we have reduced MRSA blood stream infections by 60% in our 
hospitals. For 2010/11 we achieved a 67% reduction in hospital acquired bacteraemia – 
there were only 7 cases in 2010/11. During 2010/11 we achieved a further reduction of C. 
difficile infection by 5% in our patients which means that we have seen an 88% reduction in 
cases since 2005/6. The Trust has an isolation area at Kent and Sussex hospital for C. 
difficile patients to receive specialist nursing care.  
 
The Trust publishes its MRSA bacteraemia, MSSA bacteraemia, E. coli bacteraemia and 
C. difficile cases on a weekly basis on the Trust website. To give assurance of the 
maintenance of high standards of infection prevention and cleaning we have a 
comprehensive audit programme for infection control. All cases of MRSA bacteraemia or 
C. difficile are subject to a root cause analysis to ensure learning and best practice is 
carried forward. 
 
The infection prevention team have a high profile within the Trust and a strong working 
relationship with operational staff to reduce the impact of challenges such as Norovirus. 
 
The Trust continues to have a zero tolerance approach to avoidable infections and cross 
infection. We have continued to keep infection prevention and control as one of our key 
priorities for 2011/12. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                    

                                                
                                                
                                                

Part 

three  

55



Page 42 of 61 

 

Status to the end of March 2011 
 
The graphs below indicate the cumulative total number of cases of infection hence the 
continuing rising number – e.g. total at end of year of 5 cases of MRSA bacteraemia 
acquired in hospital. 
 

Performance against trajectory for MRSA bacteraemia 2010/11

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Apr-10 May-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10 Jan-11 Feb-11 Mar-11

Cumulative pre 48 hour M RSA total Cumulative M RSA limit Cumulative post 48 hour M RSA total

 
 

C. difficile performance against trajectory 2010/11

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Cumulative target 2010/11 Performance 2009/10 Cumulative Trust post 48 hours

 
 
 

Patient falls 
 
A patient falling is the most common patient safety incident reported to the National Patient 
Safety Agency (NPSA) from inpatient services.   Elderly patients whose general health and 
confidence is deteriorating may be prone to falls, and this is often a reason for admission to 
hospital when the patient is beginning not to ‘cope’ independently in the community.  
 
At Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust this was recognised as a serious concern 
several years ago and a programme of action put into place to train staff in falls prevention, 
introduce risk assessments and a falls care plan, and purchase appropriate aids (e.g. low 
rise beds, Zimmer frames) for patients at risk of falling – following NPSA guidance.  For 
2010/11 we aimed to reduce falls by 7.5%.  
 
In 2010/11 we incorporated Slips, Trips and Falls training in our Health & Safety Mandatory 
training update.  To date 86.9% of our staff have received this training. Root cause analysis 

 

 

56



Page 43 of 61 

 

is carried out for each individual case, and feedback is shared with the clinical areas using 
posters and formal feedback.   
 
This has had a positive impact and the number of patients who have had falls has been 
reduced by more than the 7.5% that was set by the Trust which has been assisted by the 
footwear review for patients identified as being at risk of falling.  
 
A root cause analysis tool has been developed to help identify further learning and E 
reporting is now in place which will deliver comprehensive live data re falls in clinical areas.  
 
In addition the Trust has streamlined the fractured neck of femur pathway which has 
improved care for inpatients with a fracture also.  
 
While recognising the good work that has taken place already, a fracture occurring in 
hospital is potentially an avoidable and life threatening incident for each individual patient 
and family. Hence, efforts continue with the aim of trying to further reduce numbers.   Any 
patient that sustains a fracture following a fall in hospital is investigated via the Trust’s 
Serious Incident Requiring Investigation (SIRI) process as advised by the NPSA.  

 
Although management of falls has not been included as a key priority as we go forward into 
2011/12 this does remain a key focus for us. We continue to monitor falls and determine 
why they have occurred (root cause analysis) to ensure that the lessons we have learned 
in the last year have been embedded. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Trust Number of reported 

patient slips, trips & falls

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

Actual
Limit
0910

Actual 101 154 125 109 107 94 97 78 47 99 43 52

Limit 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110

0910 165 142 94 97 121 92 127 126 105 105 125 82

Apr M ay Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb M ar

Results run one month behind
 

57



Page 44 of 61 

 

Clinical Effectiveness 
 

Caring for stroke patients 
During 2010/11 the trust met the 9 national targets which were monitored within the 
Sentinel audit: 
 

 
 

An expected date of discharge being set for all stroke patients within 7 days of their 
admission to hospital was a target which was consistently met and exceeded.  The target 
was 80% and we exceeded 90% in each quarter. 
 

Another improvement to note is the 20% increase (on 2009/10) in stroke patients who 
spent 90% of their hospital stay in a stroke unit bed rather than a more generic ward. There 
is evidence patient outcomes improve if they are cared for in a dedicated specialist unit. 
 

 
 

You will note that we have included caring for patients who have had strokes within our key 
priorities for 2011/2012 again. We are keen to ensure that the progress that has been 
made to date is embedded and that we increase our performance further against the 
targets in order to ensure that patients are receiving the best possible care. 

Trust % of patients achieving all 

9 Key Sentinel Audit Indicators

70.0%

72.0%

74.0%

76.0%

78.0%

80.0%

Actual

Target

Actual 74.5% 78.7% 72.7% 75.2%

Target 75.0% 75.0% 75.0% 75.0%

Jan Feb M ar Q4

Trust % of patients spending 

90% of time in Stroke Unit

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

Actual

Plan

Actual 64.9% 74.0% 62.0% 69.4% 68.0% 71.7% 77.1% 70.4% 77.8% 81.3% 65.2% 68.6%

Plan 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80%

Apr-10 M ay-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10 Jan-11 Feb-11 M ar-11

 

 

58



Page 45 of 61 

 

Patient Experience 
 
Reducing the number of ward to ward moves for patients 
 
We aimed to ensure patients do not move more than three times (including A&E to 
MAU/AAU, and MAU/AAU to the ward) unless for clinical care/infection control reasons. 
Patient move target not fully met for Q4 due, in part to winter pressures. 
 
This is a new issue which was raised by patients through our consultation process and 
reviewing of complaints. Ward Managers were asked to provide information on the number 
of moves that their patients experienced. The patient Experience Matrons worked closely 
with the Associate Directors of Nursing to identify why patients are moved from ward to 
ward and to put processes in place to reduce this. In supporting the ‘Dignity Challenge’ 
patients will be treated as individuals by respecting them and offering a personalised 
service. 
 
Although not a key priority for 2011/12 this issue remains a key focus to ensure that 
patients are in the best place to receive optimal clinical care and also to ensure they are 
being cared for in same sex accommodation. 

 

Local Patient Survey: Number of ward 

moves

0

200

400

600

800

1000

Tota
l 

N
ot

 m
ov

ed

M
ov

ed

m
ov

ed 
3 

or
 le

ss

m
ov

ed 
4 

or
 m

or
e

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
a
ti

e
n

ts

July - Sept

Oct - Dec

Jan - March

 
 

Communication and Information 
 
Communication and information remains an important issue for the trust as highlighted 
within patient surveys, complaints, and Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman 
(PHSO) report and goals were set to confirm that we are moving in the right direction to 
ensure our patients and visitors needs are met and the information we give to them and 
communication we have with them is the best it can be.  
 
You will note from part 2 that we have decided to maintain communication as a key priority 
to be addressed. Although from our local survey results we have seen an improvement in 
the levels of patient satisfaction, in relation to communication and information there is still 
room for improvement. 

59



Page 46 of 61 

 

During the last year we have developed a training programme for staff with Christ Church 
Canterbury University in relation to communication and the management of patient concerns. 
This has been made available to all front line staff and will be continuing in 2011/2012. 
 
Specific issues of communication and information are being tackled in all areas across the 
trust where the surveys have highlighted particular concerns, for example in relation to 
ensuring that patients are told how they can expect to feel post operatively. 

 

Complaints Management - There has been an improvement in the Trust responding to 

complaints within the agreed target date. Complaints are always taken extremely seriously 
by the Trust and we seek to learn from them all to ensure that when we have got things 
wrong we put strategies in place to help prevent them going wrong again.  
 

 
 

Pressure Ulcers -  Clinically, MTW has seen a reduction in hospital acquired pressure 

ulcers. MTW’s pressure ulcer prevalence audit demonstrated a 4% reduction in 2010. The 
Trust’s hospital acquired prevalence is 8% against a national average of 10%. 
 

  

Trust Number of Pressures Sores 

(Grade 2 or above)

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Actual

0910

Limit

Actual 26 24 25 18 16 13 17 11 22 26 17 14

0910 36 40 23 10 19 18 19 30 15 20 22 24

Limit 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23

Apr M ay Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb M ar

Trust Complaints responded within 

agreed target date

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

Actual
Target
0910

Actual 50% 50% 58% 38% 61% 64% 79% 63% 74% 78% 71% 78%

Target 75.0% 75.0% 75.0% 75.0% 75.0% 75.0% 75.0% 75.0% 75.0% 75.0% 75.0% 75.0%

0910 45% 40% 53% 70% 61% 59% 44% 66% 64% 50% 57% 57%

Apr M ay Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb M ar

 

 

60



Page 47 of 61 

 

During 2010/11 MTW met the vast majority of national waiting time standards. These 

are designed to ensure patients are seen appropriately according to their clinical need. 
 

The Trust’s overall performance is measured against 70 local and national standards on a 
monthly basis. These results are shared with commissioners of local health services and 
are discussed by the Trust Board at its public meetings. A summary of the Trust’s overall 
performance in all local and national standards for 2010/11 is available to view on the 
Trust’s website, in the Board report for May 2011. 
 

The Trust’s performance against key national and local standards in 2010/11 was good 
with improvements in many areas over 2009-10.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

(RTT = referral to treatment time) 
 

 

RTT Non-Admitted Pathways Monthly % of patients who 

have completed their pathway within 18 weeks

88%

90%

92%

94%

96%

98%

100%

Actual
Target
0910

Actual 96.1% 96.0% 95.9% 96.2% 95.8% 95.8% 96.5% 96.0% 97.1% 95.9% 95.7% 97.7%

Target 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0%

0910 95.1% 95.8% 95.4% 95.2% 95.0% 95.2% 96.0% 96.4% 95.9% 96.2% 96.1% 96.1%

Apr M ay Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb M ar

RTT Admitted Pathways Monthly % of patients who 

have completed their pathway within 18 weeks

88%

90%

92%

94%

96%

98%

100%

Actual
Target
0910

Actual 93.3% 93.6% 94.3% 94.4% 93.8% 93.7% 93.0% 93.9% 94.2% 92.9% 92.9% 92.7%

Target 90.0% 90.0% 90.0% 90.0% 90.0% 90.0% 90.0% 90.0% 90.0% 90.0% 90.0% 90.0%

0910 90.1% 92.3% 90.3% 90.9% 90.1% 92.3% 93.3% 92.4% 92.2% 92.5% 93.2% 95.0%

Apr M ay Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb M ar

18 weeks standard – The Trust achieved this standard, ensuring at least 
90% of admitted patients were being treated in hospital following GP referral 
in 18 weeks. The Trust also ensured 95% of non-admitted patients were 
seen within the same period. All Trust specialties achieved  these targets.  

61



Page 48 of 61 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Monthly % of A&E Attendances

Waiting <4hrs from Arrival to Exit

90%

91%

92%

93%

94%

95%

96%

97%

98%

99%

100%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Target Trust
LHE Under Achieve
LHE 0910

YTD = 

YTD = 96.8%

% of Occupied Beds with a Delayed transfer of care

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

Apr-10 M ay-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10 Jan-11 Feb-11 M ar-11

Trust Upper Limit Low er Limit 0910

YTD = 1.18%

Emergency 4 hour access – The Trust saw, treated, admitted or 
discharged over 95% of patients in its A&E departments in 2010-11,  
meeting this national standard. 

Delayed transfers of care – Delayed transfers of care remained well below 
the national limit of 3.5% at 1.18% throughout the year. 

Genito-Urinary Medicine – the Trust saw 100% of patients within the 48 
hour standard 

 

 

 

62



Page 49 of 61 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cancer Waiting Times - 2 weeks

70.0%

75.0%

80.0%

85.0%

90.0%

95.0%

100.0%

Actual

Target

Actual 97.02% 94.87% 93.93% 95.92% 96.67% 96.13% 98.75% 96.94% 95.74% 96.24% 97.26% 97.53%

Target 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93%

Apr M ay Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb M ar

Data runs one month behind

reasons  as a percentage of scheduled operations

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

1.0%

1.2%

1.4%

1.6%

1.8%

Apr-10 M ay-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10 Jan-11 Feb-11 M ar-11

Upper Limit Low er Limit Trust 0910

Cancelled operations – for the second year running the Trust met the 
cancelled operations national standard of 0.8%. 

Cancer Waiting Time Targets – The Trust ensured 96% of patients 
with suspected cancer were seen within two weeks, surpassing the 
national standard of 93%.  

 

 

 

63



Page 50 of 61 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Cancer Waiting Times - 62 day First Definitive Treatment

70.0%

75.0%

80.0%

85.0%

90.0%

95.0%

100.0%

Actual

Target

Actual 74.47% 83.05% 83.09% 82.61% 77.91% 84.25% 77.18% 80.46% 89.17% 74.77% 72.13% 89.88%

Target 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85%

Apr M ay Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb M ar

Data runs one month 

Cancer Waiting Times - 31 day First Definitive Treatment

70.0%

75.0%

80.0%

85.0%

90.0%

95.0%

100.0%

Actual

Target

Actual 96.11% 99.43% 96.07% 96.86% 97.92% 98.31% 95.68% 96.28% 95.74% 95.60% 90.80% 98.16%

Target 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96%

Apr M ay Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb M ar

Data runs one month 

Cancer Waiting Time Targets – The Trust ensured 96% of patients 
who needed to start their treatment within 31 days did so, meeting the 
national standard. 
 

Cancer Waiting Time Targets – the Trust fell slightly behind the national 
standard for 85% of cancer patients to start their first definitive treatment 
within 62 days, achieving 80%. We are working with hospitals who refer to 
the tertiary cancer centre in 2011-12 to ensure all referrals are made in 
good time.   

 

64



Page 51 of 61 

 

Patient satisfaction Surveys 
 
The Trust ended 2010-11 with a consistently high level of patient experience as shown  
through its monthly patient satisfaction surveys and audits. 
 

The Trust now surveys over 700 patients a month to gauge levels of satisfaction in four 
key areas: 
 

Patient information and treatment: this covers aspects such as information regarding 
medication side-effects, explanation of a procedure, explanation of ward routine and 
staff having time to listen to concerns. 
 

Staff Behaviours: this covers aspects such as staff introducing themselves, response 
to call bells and requests for assistance. 
 

Ward Environment: this covers aspects such as ward cleanliness, calm atmosphere, 
single sex accommodation and number of ward moves during their stay. 
 

Satisfaction with overall care: this asks the patient to rate their overall satisfaction 
with the care they have received. 
 

The Trust saw a dip in its overall patient experience in the summer of 2010-11. This 
was mirrored in the national inpatient survey which covered July 2010.  
 

 

Overall Satisfaction Scores 2010/11

74

76

78

80

82

84

86

88

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

%

Trust

K&S

Maid

 
 
 

The Trust pinpointed the fall in patient satisfaction to the ward environment. This 
resulted in a number of initiatives including small scale audits to focus on environmental 
issues including breaches in mixed sex compliance and patient ward moves. 
 

The Trust saw a steady improvement in the patient experience in the second half of the 
year as a result of the actions it had taken. 

65



Page 52 of 61 

 

Satisfaction by theme

65

70

75

80

85

90

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2010/11

%

Patient

Information 

Staff

Behaviours

Ward

Environment

Overall Care 

 
 
Since January 2011, the Trust has consistently scored well on points such as privacy and 
dignity, choice of food, help with eating where required and involvement in care. 
 

The patient surveys also helped the Trust highlight a need to improve areas of patient 
communications and discharge planning. Actions are being developed to improve on these 
areas and form part of the Trust’s Quality Accounts for 2011-12. 

 

Many of the quality care improvements and overall rise in patient satisfaction in 2010-11 
were related to: 
 
Staffing - The Trust had its lowest vacancy rates for several years across medical, nursing 
and allied health professionals in 2010-11. This resulted in a decreased reliance in 
temporary (agency) staff and increased the Trust’s ability to provide continuity of care.  The 
Trust is continuing to reduce its agency use in 2011-12. 
 
Patient Moves - The Trust’s priority will always be to ensure that patients are seen in the 
most appropriate place to meet their clinical needs. Often this will result in a need to move 
a patient between wards if their clinical condition changes. 
 
Since August 2010 the Trust has made some significant changes to the way it manages 
emergency admissions. This included the opening of a GP referral and assessment unit 
separate from the main A&E Department and introducing a ‘way finding nurse’ whose role 
is to ensure that patients are directed to the appropriate urgent care service upon arrival. 
This may be a referral to the GP Unit, Walk-in Centre or to the main A&E Dept. 
 
The Trust has also worked closely with PCT commissioners to ensure that continuing care 
arrangements are robust to ensure it is able to safely discharge patients once they no 
longer require acute hospital care. The Trust has seen reductions in its average length of 
stay as a result of this. The net effect is to enable MTW to get the patient to the right bed 
first time from A&E or the Assessment Unit. This work continues in 2011-12. 
 

 
 

66



Page 53 of 61 

 

MTW’s investment in NHS care 
 
At MTW, we recently invested over £30 million in schemes that will help enhance patient 
care now and in the future. 
 
This sizeable investment contributed to the development of: 
 

○ A state of the art cellular pathology centre in West Kent (Maidstone Hospital) 
○ A new birthing centre (Maidstone Hospital) 
○ A long list of new replacement medical equipment 
○ The latest technology in CT scanners – our new SPECT CT scanner (Maidstone 

Hospital) is faster and exposes patients to less radiation 
○ Latest equipment and other resources in our new hospital (Tunbridge Wells 

Hospital) 
○ Expansion of our breast screening programme with two new digital 

mammography machines 
○ Work to keep the environment of our hospitals up to a high standard 
○ Major refurbishment of one of our stroke units and intensive care unit (both at 

Maidstone Hospital) 
 
The Trust expects to spend around the same amount of money again this year on other 
schemes that enhance and improve the patient experience in our hospitals. 
 
 

Innovation and expertise  
 
Healthcare professionals at MTW are pioneering and challenge the norm.  
 
Through their vision, innovation and expertise MTW is able to offer new services and 
treatments to patients. 
 
Here are just a few of our latest services that offer patients new and different choices in the 
management and treatment of their illnesses. 
 
Radiofrequency Ablation – This relatively new technique for treating cancer of the liver, 
lung or kidneys involves the use of our hi-tech CT scanner at Maidstone. 
 
A fine probe is inserted into the tumour. The probe generates heat inside the tumour which 
destroys it. The team behind this treatment at MTW has successfully carried out over 40 
procedures. 
 
Previously cancer patients had to travel to one of London’s big teaching hospitals for this 
care, but not anymore. 
 
Wet age related macular degeneration (AMD) – A new epimacular radiotherapy 
technique is being used by MTW to treat a common cause of blindness in elderly people. 
 
The normal treatment for AMD involves a series of 7-8 injections a year costing up to 
£7,000.  By comparison, the new surgical procedure, which involves an operation and 
radiotherapy to treat the diseased part of the eye, entails a one off cost of about £6,000. 
 

67



Page 54 of 61 

 

The aim of the trial is to permanently halt or slow down the macular degeneration.  
 
Image-guided RapidArc radiotherapy – This new technology exposes tumours to precise 
doses of radiotherapy in a 360 degree circle.  
 
The technology enables cancer doctors to expose the tumour to a more constant exactly 
calibrated beam of radiation while following its outline with complete accuracy. 
 
Healthy non-cancerous tissue surrounding the tumour is much better protected and 
patients receive a more effective and faster treatment.  
 
Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) – COPD is the second most common 
cause of emergency admissions to hospital.  
 
MTW has introduced a new scheme called Early Supported Discharge (ESD) which helps 
people with COPD leave hospital earlier and be cared for at home. 
If patients are appropriate for ESD, they are supplied with equipment for use at home such 
as oxygen and visited by MTW respiratory nurses who carefully assess the patients’ needs, 
and spend time with them explaining how they can best manage their condition.  
 
Microscopic bubbles – Pioneering clinicians have developed a revolutionary radiological 
technique to help detect cancer at MTW by using micro bubbles. 
 
Their breakthrough in diagnostic care will prevent thousands of breast cancer patients in 
the UK – tens of thousands of women worldwide – from having to have repeat surgery. The 
test, using tiny bubbles injected into the breast, only takes a few minutes to perform and 
has transformed the way MTW cares for patients. 
 
Normally, while undergoing surgery to remove breast cancer, surgeons routinely 
recommend that patients also have an operation to remove glands in their armpit to check 
if they are cancerous. 
 
The so called “sentinel lymph node” is the first to be affected if the cancer has spread. It is 
found during the operation with the aid of a coloured dye and is removed for testing. If the 
nodes are found to be cancerous a second operation is required to remove all the 
remaining glands in the armpit. 
 
The procedure, which was pioneered by the specialist breast cancer unit at Maidstone 
Hospital, allows the sentinel lymph node to be located and tested without surgery.  
 

Robotic cameras - MTW experts are also using laparoscopic robotic cameras in prostate 
surgery which is leading to better outcomes for patients. 
 
Looking to the future, the creation of our centres of expertise will help other 
professionals at MTW sub-specialise and become even more expert in different fields. 
Our aim is to bring home more of the 35,000 patients a year who travel to London for 
their care. 
 
 
 
 

68



Page 55 of 61 

 

Developing our people 
 
MTW highly values its staff and their invaluable  
contribution to achieving high standards of  
care for thousands of patients each year.  
We believe in great staff providing great care. 
 

The Trust’s expenditure on staff learning and  
education rose by £200,000 from £1.1 million  
in 2009/10 to £1.3 million in 2010/11. This is  
a positive move to support staff development 
 and patient care. 
 

The Trust spent approximately £236 on  
training per member of staff in 2010/11  
compared to £209 the previous year. 
 

This investment contributed to the provision 
 of over 320 different types of courses, and over 17,000 training places being taken up by 
our staff. Our staff also passed over 5,000 courses online.  

 
 
 

MTW’s green and sustainable credentials 
 

MTW is working hard to cut its carbon emissions by 12% by 2015. We did well last year, 
cutting our emissions by 9% - in figures the reduction is from 18,421,883 to 16,710,859 kg 
of CO2 emissions. 
 

This reduction is mainly from building energy use but there are contributions to this saving 
from business travel, transport and waste reduction. 
 
The financial savings from this reduction is £339,533 – money that can go into NHS care 
rather than up the chimney and into the air.  

 
 
 

69



Page 56 of 61 

 

 

Part

four   Stakeholder feedback  

 

70



Page 57 of 61 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

71



Page 58 of 61 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

72



Page 59 of 61 

 

 
 
 
 

73



Page 60 of 61 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

74



Page 61 of 61 

 

 

75



 
 

Maidstone Borough Council 
 

Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells Joint Health Overview and 

Scrutiny Sub Committee 
 

Thursday 4 August 2011 
 

Maidstone & Tunbridge Wells Adult Mental Health Services Review 

 
Report of: Orla Sweeney, Overview and Scrutiny Officer 

 
 1. Introduction 
 

1.1 To consider the recommendations made by the Committee as part 
of the Adult Mental Health Services Review and agree action to be 

taken. 
 

 2. Recommendation 
 
2.1 The Committee is recommended to revisit the recommendations 

 made (Appendix A) and discuss the best way to take these forward 
 taking into consideration the meetings and roundtable discussions 

 that have taken place subsequently as a follow up.  Members should 
 consider the information and evidence presented at the meetings 
 and determine the relevance of this in relation to the original 

 recommendations made.   
 

3. Reasons for Recommendation 
 

3.1 The Tunbridge Wells and Maidstone Overview and Scrutiny Review 

into Adult Mental Health Services was formally launched at a 
Roundtable Mental Health Discussion held at the Camden Centre in 

Royal Tunbridge Wells on 23 July 2011.  The meeting explored key 
emerging themes: Volunteering, Primary Care Diagnosis and Access 
to information. 

 
3.2  A follow up roundtable took place on 10 July 2011 at the same 

venue.  This was Chaired by Greg Clark MP and took forward the 
suggestions and requests of those involved at the July meeting.  
There were three presentations from the following: 

 
• West Kent Service Redesign and First Response (FRIS), 

Erville Millar, Kent and Medway NHS and Social Care 
Partnership Trust; 

• Supported Volunteering -  A Proposal, Chris Grogan, Kent 

Supported Employment and Kate Anker, VAWK; and 
• Exercise on Prescription for Mental Health – Helen 

Wolstenholme, Tunbridge Wells Borough Council and Stewart 
Wild, Fusion Lifestyle. 

 

 

Agenda Item 10

76



 
3.3 The next steps identified at this meeting were to involve Job Centre 

Plus and to offer an opportunity for the Voluntary and Community 
to network.  

 

3.4 On 20 May 2011 it was Maidstone’s turn to host and a meeting was 
arranged within the community to help emphasis the nuance of the 

meeting.  The Blackthorn Trust hosted the meeting and on this 
occasion the meeting was Chaired by Chairman of the GP 
Consortium, Dr Kuvalagh Singh. 

 
3.5 The meeting included a marketplace, in the Blackthorn gardens with 

Voluntary and Community groups displaying literature and 
presentations were made by the following: 

 

• Blackthorn Trust - a short film made by the Open University 
last summer about their work, the site and those they work 

with – Julie Chalmers-Stevens, Employment Support Officer; 
• Job Centre Plus: Personalized Advice; Get Britain Working; 

and The Work Programme – Stuart Rayner , Mental Health 
Co-ordinator for Kent and Medway and Anthony March, 
Integrated Partnership Manager; 

• Integrated Pathway – Stuart Rayner, Mental Health Co-
ordinator for Kent and Medway, Job Centre Plus and  Lynn 

Marchant, Kent & Medway NHS and Social Care Partnership 
Trust Service User Employment Manager, and Lead for Kent 
Mindful Employer; and 

• MCCH - the development of employment services in relation 
to Primary Care and meeting the needs of a range of 

individuals from across the mental health spectrum - Michael 
Duignan-Murphy, Service Development Manager, 
Employment & Vocational Services and Kate Turner, Deputy 

Service Development Manager, Mental Health, Employment, 
Enterprise & Engagement Services. 

 
 
3.6 A feedback form was included for all delegates to help re establish 

the direction of the Adult Mental Health Services Review as there 
had been a clear divergence from meeting to meeting removing 

direction from the 12 recommendations.  The feedback given 
established that the next steps were to revisit the original 
recommendations. 

 

 

 
 
  

 
 

 

77



Appendix A 

 

Adult Mental Health Services Review, July 2011 

 

The Mental Health Services Working Group recommends that: 

 

To Local Authorities 
 

1. Local authorities embrace the Time to Change Campaign as a route to 

tackling the stigma attached to mental health disorders. 

 

To West Kent PCT and the Kent and Medway NHS and Social Care Partnership 
Trust 
 

2. The PCT engages with local authorities in the development of its Wellbeing 

Strategy. 

 

3. Information on voluntary, community, public and private mental health 

services for all sectors of the community be made more easily available. 

 

4. A website be developed, along with an accompanying leaflet, outlining all 

local mental health services in Kent along with details on how to access 

these. 

 

5. The local website referred to in recommendation 4 be advertised in GP 

surgeries, Gateways and libraries alongside the NHS Choices website and 

highlighted to GPs new to the area to improve knowledge of services. 

 

6. Clarity is ensured over developments or cuts in mental health services to 

reduce uncertainty over services, which can be worrying for vulnerable 

patients. 

 

7. Consultations should be in a variety of formats, with short versions 

available containing only priority questions, to ensure that carers and 

service users can participate even where time is limited. 

 

78



Appendix A 

 

8. Consultation results should be clearly publicised along with proposed 

follow up actions, including for the recent listening exercise. 

 

9. The following areas of concern are focussed on: 

 

Access to psychological therapies and availability of funding for services 

which tackle mild to moderate mental illness; 

 

Tackling long waiting lists for talking therapies in order to prevent 

deterioration of patients’ mental health; 

 

Improving access to secondary care for a broader range of patients; 

 

Ensuring an emphasis is placed on listening to the needs of service users 

in secondary care; and 

 

Improving access to information on patient healthcare, budgets and 

statistics, in particular via websites.  

 

To Local Authorities and the Health Trusts 

 

10. In light of evidence that physical activity contributes to good mental 

health, local authorities and the health trusts should work together to 

provide exercise on prescription. 

 

To Local Authorities, the Health Trusts and the Third Sector 

 

11. Joined-up working between service providers should be encouraged to 

ensure seamless and complementary provision of services for the benefit 

of all members of the public experiencing mental health problems. 

 

79



Appendix A 

 

12. Patients should be supported in undertaking voluntary work as a precursor 

to returning to paid employment. 

80



Appendix A 

 

 

81



 
 

Maidstone Borough Council 
 

Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells Joint Health Overview and 

Scrutiny Sub Committee 
 

Thursday 4 August 2011 
 

Joint Health Protocols and Appointment of Substitute Members 

 
Report of: Overview & Scrutiny Officer 

 
 1. Introduction 
 

1.1 At the meeting held on 21 September 2010 the Committee raised 
objections against the use of Substitute Members. 

 
1.2 The Scrutiny Officer was tasked with investigating the argument for 

and against Substitute Members on behalf of the Committee. 
 

1.3 The Committee have previously agreed a set of protocols, these will 

need to be amended if the Committee agrees to the appointment of 
substitute members and are included at Appendix B 

 
 2. Recommendation 
 

2.1 The Committee is recommended to consider the report prepared by 
 the Scrutiny Officer at Appendix A and reconsider the inclusion of 

Substitute Members as part of the protocols of the Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Sub Committees in line with the 
constitutional and legal groundings of the respective authorities. 

 
3. Reasons for Recommendation 

 

3.1 The Committee is at the start of a new Municipal year with newly 
appointed Members.  It is therefore timely that it revisits the issues 

raised by the previous Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub 
Committee with regards to Substitute Members. 

 
3.2 The report prepared (Appendix A) details the argument for and 

against and has been privy to legal inspection by Tunbridge Wells 

and Maidstone Borough Council. The report recommends the 
appointment of substitute members. 

 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 

Agenda Item 11

82



Appendix A 
 

X.1 
 

MAIDSTONE AND TUNBRIDGE WELLS JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY SUB COMMITTEE (JHOSC) 

 
4 August 2011 

 
THE USE OF SUBSTITUTES AT JHOSC MEETINGS 

 
Briefing note by Mike McGeary, Overview and Scrutiny Officer, Tunbridge Wells 

Borough Council 
 

1. Background 
 

1.1 At the September 2010 meeting of this Joint Committee, the issue of 
whether substitutes should be appointed was discussed. The Overview and 
Scrutiny Officer was tasked with researching the benefits and 
disadvantages and report back with recommendations. 

 
2. The legal background 
 
2.1 These days, it is common practice for local authorities to operate a 

substitute system, which provides for the attendance at a committee or sub-
committee meeting a substitute member whenever a regular appointed 
member cannot be present. 

 
2.2 The legal basis of appointing members to formal decision-making 

committees and sub-committees of a local authority is set out in the Local 
Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990. The 
practice of appointing substitutes quickly followed but, initially, was 
questioned by some local authorities as to its legality. 

 
2.3 There are now two opinions from leading counsel in support of the legality 

of such a system and many doubts that once existed have now been 
overridden. 

 
3. The benefits and the disadvantages of the substitute system  
 
3.1 The main benefits of appointing substitutes are as follows: 
 

- It preserves the political balance of committees; and 
- It ensures a full (or as near as possible) attendance at meetings. 

 
3.2 The key disadvantages of appointing substitutes are: 
 

- Substitute members might not have the same expertise in agenda items 
as ordinary members; and 

- Substitute members might be asked to attend at short notice and will 
not, therefore, have the time to prepare thoroughly. 

 

83



Appendix A 
 

X.2 
 

4.  Overcoming the objections 
 
4.1 In a Scrutiny setting, which is less about decision-making and more about 

exercising an enquiring and challenging mind, the lack of expertise in a 
subject matter should not be a barrier to the appointment of substitutes. 

 
4.2 To ensure that a substitute has sufficient time in which to read the agenda 

papers thoroughly, it is suggested that at least three clear working days’ 
notice (not counting the day of the meeting) would need to be given. 

 
4.3 It would be recommended that substitutes, say a maximum of three, 

reflecting the same political balance as for ordinary members, be appointed 
at the start of the civic year. 

 
5. Conclusions 
 
5.1 This is not a comprehensive study into the merits or objections to the 

system of appointing substitutes to the JHOSC. It aims to highlight the 
principal issues only. 

 
5.2 There are some regulatory committees of both Tunbridge Wells and 

Maidstone Borough Councils, operating in the Planning or Licensing areas 
for instance – and on Standards Sub-Committees – where Constitutional 
(and best practice) requirements say that only fully-trained members can be 
appointed, including substitute members. In a Scrutiny setting, it is not felt 
that the same stringent requirements should be established. As previously 
mentioned, the ‘critical friend’ approach is more important, with 
professionally-trained officers and expert witnesses on hand at meetings to 
answer members’ detailed questions. 

 
5.3 Based on the above arguments, the officer’s conclusions are that there are 

more advantages than disadvantages in applying a substitute system to 
JHOSC meetings. Members will, however, have other aspects of this which 
they will need to argue and, ultimately, it is for the JHOSC to decide 
whether they wish to introduce a substitute system. If, having considered 
the issue, there was a wish to trial the process for, say, 12 months, this is 
another option which could be followed.  

 
 
 

Mike McGeary 
Overview and Scrutiny Officer, Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 
 

 

  

 

84



Appendix B 

Protocols for Joint Working between Tunbridge Wells and Maidstone Scrutiny 

Committees 

Meeting Dates and Venues 

Once nominations from both sides have been received for joint committees a 

meeting date should be agreed that the majority of members can attend. The 

venue should be in between the two town halls or at a mutually agreed location 

between the scrutiny teams in absence of a chair being appointed. 

Chairing Joint Committees 

Chairmanship should be firstly according to location or if not the on the basis of 

best person for the job, and nominations should be taken at the first meeting of 

the Committee. If it is a joint meeting of two scrutiny committees to hear 

evidence relating to a review that is being pursued separately the Chairman 

should be appointed for the duration of the meeting in the usual manner. 

Voting Rights 

All committee members would be entitled to vote at meetings  

Reports, information and support 

The Joint Committee should expect the same level of support in terms of 

administration, reports and information as any other Committee. The Overview 

and Scrutiny Offices will ensure that work is split between the two teams evenly 

and identify a lead officer for each joint review as the Chair’s point of contact.  

Reports from joint committees will be developed with the Committee and in 

particular the scrutiny Chairmen. 

 

85



 
 

Maidstone Borough Council 
 

Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells Joint Health Overview and 

Scrutiny Sub Committee 
 

Thursday 4 August 2011 
 

Future Work Programme and Scrutiny Officer Update 

 
Report of: Overview & Scrutiny Officer 

 
1. Introduction 
 

1.1 To consider the Committee’s future work programme. 
 

 2. Recommendation 
 

2.1 That the Committee considers the Future Work Programme to 
ensure that it is appropriate and covers all issues Members 
currently wish to consider within the Committee’s remit. Members 

are advised that their work programme and meetings are often in 
response to consultations and decisions made in the areas covered 

by the Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust. 
 
2.2 That the Committee considers the recommendations for their work 

programme relevant to the Committee and discuss whether these 
are items requiring further investigation or monitoring by the 

Committee. 
  
3 Future Work Programme 

 

3.1   Throughout the course of the municipal year the Committee is 

asked to put forward work programme suggestions.  These 
suggestions are planned into its annual work programme.  Members 
are asked to consider the work programme at each meeting to 

ensure that remains appropriate and covers all issues Members 
currently wish to consider within the Committee’s remit.  

 
 

3  Work Programme recommendations from parent 

 Committees. 
 

4.1 Maidstone Borough Council’s parent Committee for the 2011/12 
 Municipal year is Communities Overview and Scrutiny.  Tunbridge 
 Wells Borough Council’s respective Committee is Environment, 

 Housing & Select Committee. 
 

4.2 The Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee at Maidstone 
 Borough Council at their meeting on 25 May 2011 asked that the 
 following recommendation be passed on to the Joint Health 

 Overview and Scrutiny Sub Committee to consider as part of their  
 work programme: 

Agenda Item 12

86



 
 

• Care of the Elderly; Older people in care: How older people 
are cared for in care homes and hospital during the last years 
of their life and can be allowed to die with dignity. The review 

should look at public and private provision. Also see: 
http://www2.hud.ac.uk/hhs/chscr/Claire_Rayner_Scholarship

.php into compassion in nursing and care. This is based on 
feedback from residents who are members of Maidstone 
Older Person’s Forum. The Quality Care Commission is quite 

new; we would like to examine their inspection process and 
understand who is inspecting care homes and hospitals in the 

borough and also investigate a suggestion that LINKs are 
poorly resourced and ineffective. The key concerns are for 
quality, dignity and compassion and understanding what 

basic standards people can expect. Identification of the 
issues – Are people being cared for as individuals? There may 

be two sides to the story including how to recruit and retain 
staff in a low pay area. 

 
 
 

 
 

 

87


	Agenda
	8 Minutes of the meeting held on 16 March 2011
	9 Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust: Quality Report 2010/11
	Quality_Account__2010-11

	10 Adult Mental Health Review
	110804 Adult Mental Health Services Review Recommendations to revisit appendix a

	11 Joint Health Protocols and the Appointment of Substitute Members
	110804 Appendix A Briefing paper on use of substitutes
	110804 Appendix B Protocols

	12 Future Work Programme

